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INDEPENDENT AUDITOR'S REPORT
TO THE MAHINDRA IDEAL FINANCE LIMITED

Report on the Audit of Financial Statements
Opinion

We have audited the financial statements of Mahindra Ideal Finance Limited ("Company") which comprise
the statement of financial position as at 31 March 2024, and the Statement of Profit or Loss and Other
Comprehensive Income, Statement of Changes in Equity and Statement of Cashflows for the year then
ended, and notes to the financial statements, including material accounting policies.

In our opinion, the accompanying financial statements give a true and fair view of the financial position of
the Company as at 31 March 2024 and of its financial performance and its cash flows for the year then
ended in accordance with Sri Lanka Accounting Standards.

Basis for opinion

We conducted our audit in accordance with Sri Lanka Auditing Standards (SLAuUSs). Our responsibilities’
under those standards are further described in the Auditor's responsibilities for the audit of the financial
statements section of our report. We are independent of the Company in accordance with the Code of
Ethics for Professional Accountants issued by CA Sri Lanka (Code of Ethics) and we 'have fulfilled our other
ethical responsibilities in accordance with the Code of Ethics. We believe that the audit evidence we have
obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion.

Other Information included in the Company's 31 March 2024 Annual Report

Management is responsible for the other information included in the Company 31 March 2024 annual
report. Our opinion on the financial statements does not cover the other information and we do not
express any form of assurance conclusion thereon.

In connection with our audit of the financial statements, our responsibility is to read the other information
and, in doing so, consider whether the other information is materially inconsistent with the financial
statements, or our knowledge obtained in the audit or otherwise appears to be materially misstated. If,
based on the work we have performed, we conclude that there is a material misstatement of this other
information, we are required to report that fact. We have nothing to report in this regard.

Responsibilities of management and those charged with governance for the financial statements

Management is responsible for the preparation of financial statements that give a true and fair view in
accordance with Sri Lanka Accounting Standards, and for such internal control as management
determines is necessary to enable the preparation of financial statements that are free from material
misstatement, whether due to fraud or error.

In preparing the financial statements, management is responsible for assessing the Company'’s ability to
continue as a going concern, disclosing, as applicable, matters related to going concern and using the
going concern basis of accounting unless management either intends to liquidate the Company or to cease
operations, or has no realistic alternative but to do so.

Those charged with governance are responsible for overseeing the Company's financial reporting process.
(Contd...2/)

Partners: D K Hulangamuwa FCA FCMA LLB (London), A P A Gunasekera FCA FCMA, Ms. Y A De Silva FCA, Ms. G G S Manatunga FCA, W K B S P Fernando FCA FCMA, B E Wijesuriya FCA FCMA
R N de Saram ACA FCMA. Ms. N A De Silva FCA, N M Sulaiman ACA ACMA, Ms. L K H L Fonseka FCA, Ms. PV K N Sajeewani FCA, A A J R Perera FCA ACMA, N Y R L Fernando ACA,
NN famana ACA ACMA © A Valamala ACA ACMA



Auditor’s responsibilities for the audit of the financial statements

Our objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the financial statements as a whole are
free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error, and to issue an auditor's report that
includes our opinion. Reasonable assurance is a high level of assurance, but is not a guarantee that an
audit conducted in accordance with SLAuSs will always detect a material misstatement when it exists.
Misstatements can arise from fraud or error and are considered material if, individually or in the
aggregate, they could reasonably be expected to influence the economic decisions of users taken on the
basis of these financial statements

As part of an audit in accordance with SLAuSs, we exercise professional judgment and maintain
professional scepticism throughout the audit. We also:

e Identify and assess the risks of material misstatement of the financial statements, whether due to
fraud or error, design and perform audit procedures responsive to those risks, and obtain audit
evidence that is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion. The risk of not
detecting a material misstatement resulting from fraud is higher than for one resulting from error,
as fraud may involve collusion, forgery, intentional omissions, misrepresentations, or the override
of internal control.

e Obtain an understanding of internal control relevant to the audit in order to design audit
procedures that are appropriate in the circumstances, but not for the purpose of expressing an
opinion on the effectiveness of the Company's internal control.

e Evaluate the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the reasonableness of accounting
estimates and related disclosures made by management.

e Conclude on the appropriateness of management's use of the going concern basis of accounting
and, based on the audit evidence obtained, whether a material uncertainty exists related to events
or conditions that may cast significant doubt on the Company’'s ability to continue as a going
concern. If we conclude that a material uncertainty exists, we are required to draw attention in
our auditor's report to the related disclosures in the financial statements or, if such disclosures
are inadequate, to modify our opinion. Our conclusions are based on the audit evidence obtained
up to the date of our auditor's report. However, future events or conditions may cause the
Company to cease to continue as a going concern.

« Evaluate the overall presentation, structure and content of the financial statements, including the
disclosures, and whether the financial statements represent the underlying transactions and
events in a manner that achieves fair presentation.

We communicate with those charged with governance regarding, among other matters, the planned scope
and timing of the audit and significant audit findings, including any significant deficiencies in internal
control that we identify during our audit.

We also provide those charged with governance with a statement that we have complied with relevant
ethical requirements regarding independence, and to communicate with them all relationships and other
matters that may reasonably be thought to bear on our independence, and where applicable, actions taken
to eliminate threats or safequards applied.

Report on other legal and regulatory requirements

As required by section 163 (2) of the Companies Act No. 07 of 2007, we have obtained all the information
and explanations that were required for the audit and, as far as appears from our examination, proper

accountirg%mrds have been kept by the Company.

18 April 2024
Colombo



Mahindra Ideal Finance Limited

STATEMENT OF COMPREHENSIVE INCOME

Year ended 31 March 2024

Notes 2024 2023
LKR LKR

Income 3 2.,309,040,380 1,924,279.355
Interest Income 4.1 2,153,618.043 1,805,299,948
Interest Expenses 4.2 (1,061.880,311) (921,725,959)
Net Interest Income 1,091,737,732 883,573,989
Fees and Commission Income 5 10,249,062 13,067,675
Net Fee and Commission Income 10,249,062 13,067,675
Other Operating Income 6 145,173,275 105,911,732
Total Operating Income 1,247,160,069 1,002,553,396
Impairment Charges for Loans and other Losses 7 49,871,815 (70,983,116)
Net Operating Income 1,297,031,884 931,570,280
Operating Expenses
Personnel Expenses 8 (501,575,385) (349,974,582)
Depreciation of Property Plant & Equipment 22.2 (110,425,685) (93,972,623)
Amortization of Intangible Assets 23 (5,067,304) (3,333,640)
Other Operating Expenses 9 (345.,864,952) (236.296,248)
Operating Profit before VAT on Financial Services and Social 334,098,558 247,993,187
Security Contribution Levy
Value Added Tax on Financial Services 10 (116,700,020) (88,673,219)
Social Security Contribution Levy 10 (16,208,337) (6,227.,766)
Profit before Taxation 201,190,201 153,092,202
Income Tax Expenses 11.1 (97,898.,498) (66,194,388)
Profit/ (Loss) for the period 103,291,703 86,897,814
Basic and Diluted Earning per Share [2.2 0.71 0.60
Profit/ (Loss) for the period 103,291,703 86,897,814
Other Comprehensive Income not to be reclassified to profit or loss in
subsequent periods
Actuarial Gain/ (Loss) on Defined Benefit Obligations 283 (8,101,913) 2.130,956
Deferred Tax (Charge)/Reversal on Other Comprehensive Income 29 2,430,574 (639.287)
Other Comprehensive Income for the period, Net of Tax (5,671,339) 1,491,669
Total Comprehensive Income for the period, Net of Tax 97,620,364 88,389,483

The tes on pages 07 through 52 form an integral part of the Financial Statements.



Mahindra Ideal Finance Limited

STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION

As at 31 March 2024

ASSETS

Cash and Bank Balances

Investment in Government Securities at Amortized cost
Financial Investments-Measured at Fair Value through PL
Placements with Banks and Other Financial Institutions
Gold Advances

Lease Rental Receivables

Loans and Advances

Other Financial Assets

Other Non Financial Assets

Financial Investments-Measured at Fair Value through OCI
Property, Plant and Equipment

Intangible Assets

Deferred Tax Assets

TOTAL ASSETS

LIABILITIES

Interest Bearing Borrowings

Due to the Customers

Other Financial Liabilities

Other Non Financial Liabilities
Post Employment Benefit Liability
Current Tax Liabilities

TOTAL LIABILITIES

EQUITY

Stated Capital

Retained Earnings

Reserves

TOTAL EQUITY

TOTAL LIABILITIES AND EQUITY

Notes

13
14
14.1
15
16
17
18
19
20
21
22.3
23
29

24
25
26
27
28

30

31

2024
LKR

110,767,720
1,819,024,328
1,001,278,217
355,848,060
4,505,162,573
2,864,129,749
1,173,631,285
29,495,526
188,496,352
457,700
534,360,642
43,094,228
24,116,990

2023
LKR

165,583,696
458,137,517

445,268,915
3,950,688,495
2,374,025,383

798,812,852

24,340,891
58,781,143
457,700
470,357,459
18,047,136
27,648,433

12,649,863,370

8,792,149,620

3,843,671,591
5,204,224,178
547,160,170
67,585,280
49,036,778
5,942,625

1,989,957,781
3,487,076,917
379,280,751
37,393,905
30,896,045
32,921,837

9,717,620,622

5,957,527,236

1,908,247,125
970,936,139
53,059,484

1,908,247,125
878,196,794
48,178,465

2,932,242,748

2,834,622,384

12,649,863,370

8,792,149,620

These Financial Statements are in compliance with the requirements of the Companies Act No.07 of 2007.

Chief Financial Officer

The Board of Directors are responsible for these Financial Statements. Signed for and on behalf of the Board of by;

("__-_-——'—‘——\

The Accounting Policies and Notes on pages 07 through 52 form an integral part of the Financial Statements.

18 April 2024
Colombo
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Mabhindra Ideal Finance Limited

STATEMENT OF CHANGES IN EQUITY

Year ended 31 March 2024

Balance As at 1 April 2022

Total Income / (Loss) for the Period

Other Comprehensive Income (Net of Tax)
Transfer to Statutory Reserve Fund
Balance As at 31 March 2023

Balance As at 1 April 2023

Total Income / (Loss) for the Period

Other Comprehensive Income (Net of Tax)
Transfer to Statutory Reserve Fund

Balance As at 31 March 2024

Stated Retained Statutory
Capital Earnings Reserve Fund Total
LKR LKR LKR LKR
1.908,247,125 794,226,786 43,758,990 2,746,232,902
= 86,897.814 - 86.,897.814
- 1,491,669 - 1,491,669
- (4,419.474) 4,419,474 :
1,908,247,125 878,196,794 48,178,465 2,834,622,384
1,908,247,125 878,196,794 48,178,465 2.834.622,384
- 103,291,703 - 103,291,703
- (5,671.339) - (5,671,339)
£ (4,881,019) 4,881,019 -
1,908,247,125 970,936,139 53,059,484 2,932,242,748

The Accounting Policies and Notes on pages 07 through 52 form an integral part of the Financial Statements.
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Mahindra Ideal Finance Limited
STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS

Year ended 31 March 2024

Cash Generated from Operations

Retirement Benefit Liabilities Paid
Income Tax Paid

Net Cash Flows from/(Used in) Operating Activities

Cash Flows from / (Used in) Investing Activities

Purchase of Property, Plant and Equipment
Purchase of Right of Use Assets

Purchase of Intangible Assets

Disposal of Property, Plant and Equipment
Dividend Received

Investment in Treasury Bills

Investiment in Fixed Deposits

Net Cash Flows from/(Used in) Investment Activities

Cash Flows from / (Used in) Financing Activities

Proceeds from Bank Borrowings
Repayment of Bank Borrowings
Rental Paid for Lease Obligation
Repayment of Other Borrowed Funds

Net Cash Flows from/(Used in) Financing Activities
Net Increase/(Decrease) in Cash & Cash Equivalents

Cash and Cash Equivalents at the Beginning of the Period
Cash and Cash Equivalents at the End of the Year

YOU

Pl = :‘gf
ecounfing Pohcm

221
22.1
23

14
15

Note 2024 2023
Cash Flows From / (Used in) Operating Activities LKR LKR
Profit before Income Tax Expense 201,190,201 153,092,202
Adjustment for Other Non Cash Items Included in Profit Before Tax
Depreciation of Property, Plant and Equipment & ROU Assets 22.3 110,425,685 93,972,623
Amortization of Intangible Assets 23 5,067,304 3,333.640
Provision for Impairment 7 (49,871,815) 70,983,116
Interest expenses on Borrowings 4.2 377,945,850 434,895,016
Defined Benefit Obligation 12,673,570 9,450,813
Dividend Income 6 (179,520) (240,000)
Disposal (Gain)/Loss on Fixed Assets = -
Operating Profit before Working Capital Changes 657,251,275 765,487,410
(Increase)/Decrease in Lease Rental Receivables (463.612,467)  1,135,054.895
(Increase)/Decrease in Loans and Advances (347,074,261) 603,795,207
(Increase)/Decrease in Gold Advance (558,838,334) (1,703,801,685)
(Increase)/Decrease in Other Financial Assets (5,154,635) (7.967,458)
(Increase)/Decrease in Other Non Financial Assets (123,753,192) 113,784,455
(Increase)/Decrease in Inventories - 328,056
Increase/(Decrease) in Amounts Due to Customers 1,717,147,261 1,292,058,075
Increase/(Decrease) in Other Financial Liabilities 231,602,037 (110,978,929)
Increase/(Decrease) in Other Non Financial Liabilities 30,191,375 (7,573,033)
Increase/(Decrease) in Current Tax liabilities (8,732,522) 3,633,728

1,129,026,537

(2,634,750)
(116,145,188)

2,083,820,723

(2,762,375)
(87.024.625)

1,010,246,599

1,994,033,723

(88,766,534)
(85,662,333)
(30,114,398)

(141,303.856)
(76,526,736)
(2,184,070)

179,520 240,000
(515,700,380) (300,329,263)
189,420,855 (157,524,998)
(530,643,270) (677,628,924)

15.,985,000,000
(15,340,051,428)
(63,722,616)

6.424,000,000
(7.494,177.824)
(60,047,593)

581,225,956

(1,130,225,417)

1,060,829,285 186,179,382
251,915,083 65,735,701
1,312,744,367 251,915,083

s on pages 07 through 52 form an integral part of the Financial Statements.



Mahindra Ideal Finance Limited

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
Year ended 31 March 2024

1.1

1.2

1.3

1.4

CORPORATE INFORMATION
General

IDEAL Investment Limited is a limited liability company, incorporated on 24 January 2012 under companies
Act No.7 0f 2007 and then changed the name as IDEAL Finance Limited on 12 March 2012 and domiciled in
Sri Lanka. The registered office of the company is situated at N0.299, Dr. Colvin R De. Silva Mawatha (Union
Place), Colombo 02. On 28" January 2022 the company changed its’ name to MAHINDRA IDEAL Finance
Limited.

MAHINDRA IDEAL Finance Limited is licensed by Monetary Board of the Central Bank of Sri Lanka under
the Finance Business Act No. 42 of 2011, and also registered under the Finance Leasing Act No.56 of 2000.
Principal Activities and Nature of Operations

During the year, the principal activities of the Company were Acceptance of Deposits, Granting Lease, Loan
Facilities and Gold Advances.

Parent Entity and Ultimate Parent Entity

Mahindra and Mahindra Financial Services Limited, India is the parent of MAHINDRA IDEAL Finance
Limited. Further the company does not have any investments in the form of subsidiary, joint venture or
associate.

Date of Authorization for Issue

The financial statements of MAHINDRA IDEAL Finance Limited for the period ended 31 March 2024 were
authorized for issue in accordance with a resolution of the Board of Directors on 18 April 2024.

chartered
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Mahindra Ideal Finance Limited

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
Year ended 31 March 2024

2.1

2.1.1

2.1.2

2.1.3

2.14

2.1.5

2.1.6

ACCOUNTING POLICIES
Basis of Preparation
Statement of Compliance

The Statement of Financial Position, Statement of Comprehensive Income, Statement of Changes in Equity
and Statement of Cash Flows, together with Accounting Policies and Notes, (‘Financial Statements’),as at 31
March 2024 and for the period then ended, have been prepared in accordance with Sri Lanka Accounting
Standards (hereafter referred as “SLLFRS™), laid down by the Institute of Chartered Accountants of Sri Lanka
and in compliance with the requirements of the Companies Act No. 07 of 2007 and amendments thereto.

Responsibility for Financial Statements

The Board of Directors of the Company is responsible for these Financial Statements of the Company as per
Sri Lanka Accounting Standards (SLFRSs and LKASs) and the provisions of the Companies Act No 7 of 2007.

Basis of measurement

The financial statements have been prepared on a historical cost basis except retirement benefits obligation,
which was ascertained by an actuarial valuation.

Presentation of Financial Statements

In compliance with LKAS 01 on Presentation of Financial Statements, each material class of similar items are
presented separately in the Financial Statements. ltems of dissimilar nature or functions are presented
separately, unless they are immaterial.

The company presents its Statements of Financial Position broadly in order of liquidity. An analysis regarding
recovery or settlement within 12 months after the reporting date (current) and more than 12 months after the
reporting date (non-current) is presented in Note 35.

Functional and presentation currency

The financial statements are presented in Sri Lankan Rupees, except when otherwise is indicated. No
adjustments have been made for inflationary factors.

Materiality, Aggregation Offsetting and Rounding Off

In compliance with LKAS 01 on Presentation of Financial Statements, each material class of similar items is
presented separately in the Financial Statements. Items of dissimilar nature or functions too are presented
separately, unless they are immaterial.

Financial Assets and Financial Liabilities are offset and the net amount reported in the Statement of Financial
Position only when there is a legally enforceable right to offset the recognized amounts and there is an intention
to settle on a net basis, or to realize the assets and settle the liability simultaneously. Income and expenses are
not offset in the Statement of Profit or Loss unless required or permitted by any accounting standard or
interpretation, and as specifically disclosed in the accounting policies.

The amounts in the financial statements have been rounded off to the nearest Sri Lankan Rupee, except where
otherwise indicated as permitted by the Sri Lanka Accounting Standard (LKAS 1) — ‘Presentation of Financial




Mahindra Ideal Finance Limited

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
Year ended 31 March 2024

2.1.8

2.2

£
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Comparative Information

The accounting policies have been consistently applied by the Company and, are consistent with those used in
the previous financial year. Further comparative information is reclassified whenever necessary to comply
with the current presentation in the Financial Statements. However, the Company has not restated comparative
information for 2024.

Statement of Cash Flow

The cash flow statement has been prepared by using the indirect method in accordance with the Sri Lanka
Accounting Standard - LKAS 7 (Statement of Cash Flows), whereby operating, investing and financial
activities have been separately recognised. Cash and cash equivalents comprise of short term, highly liquid
investments that are readily convertible to known amounts of cash and are subject to an insignificant risk of
changes in value.

Cash and cash equivalents include cash in hand, balances with banks, placements with banks (less than 3
months), net of unfavorable bank balances and securities purchased under repurchase agreement (less than
three months).

Events After the Reporting Date

Events after the Reporting Date are those events, favorable and unfavorable, that occur between the reporting
date and the date when the Financial Statements are authorised for issue. In this regard, all material and
important events that occurred after the reporting period have been considered and appropriate disclosures are
made in Note 37 to the Financial Statements.

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING JUDGMENTS, ESTIMATES AND ASSUMPTIONS

The preparation of Financial Statements of the Company in conformity with Sri Lanka Accounting Standards
requires the management to make judgments, estimates and assumptions that affect the application of
accounting policies and the reported amounts of assets, liabilities, income and expenses. Actual results may
differ from these estimates.

Estimates and underlying assumptions are reviewed on an ongoing basis. Revisions to accounting estimates
are recognised in the period in which the estimate is revised and in any future periods affected.

Going Concern

The board has made an assessment of the company’s ability to continue as a going concern and is satisfied that
it has the resources to continue in business for the foreseeable future. Furthermore, the board is not aware of
any material uncertainties that may cast significant doubt upon the company’s ability to continue as a going
concern and they do not intend either to liquidate or to cease operations of the company. Further, the Directors
have considered the potential downsides that the recent economic stress could bring to the business operations
of the Company, in making this assessment. Therefore, the financial statements continue to be prepared on the
going concern basis.

Impairment losses on loans and receivables

The measurement of impairment losses under SLFRS 9 across all categories of financial assets requires
judgement, in particular, the estimation of the amount and timing of future cash flows and collateral values
when determining impairment losses and the assessment of a significant increase in credit risk. These estimates
are driven by a number of factors, changes in which can result in different levels of allowances.

™
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Mahindra Ideal Finance Limited

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
Year ended 31 March 2024

iil.

vi.

2.3

2.3.1

The Company’s ECL calculations are outputs of complex models with a number of underlying assumptions
regarding the choice of variable inputs and their interdependencies. Elements of the ECL models that are
considered accounting judgements and estimates include:

e  Number of days past due and the Guidelines issued by the Central Bank of Sri Lanka
The Company’s criteria for assessing if there has been a significant increase in credit risk and so
allowances for financial assets should be measured on a LTECL basis and the qualitative assessment

e  The segmentation of financial assets when their ECL is assessed on a collective basis

e Development of ECL models, including the various formulas and the choice of inputs

e Determination of associations between macroeconomic scenarios and, economic inputs, such as
unemployment levels and collateral values, and the effect on PDs, EADs and LGDs

e Selection of forward-looking macroeconomic scenarios and their probability weightings, to derive the
economic inputs into the ECL. models.

Fair Value of Financial Instruments

The determination of fair values of financial assets and financial liabilities recorded in the Statement of
Financial Position for which there is no observable market price is based on using a variety of valuation
techniques that include the use of mathematical models. The valuation of financial instruments is described in
Note 34 to the Financial Statements. The Company measures fair value using the fair value hierarchy that
reflects the significance of input used in making measurements. The fair value hierarchy is given in Note 34
to the Financial Statements.

Financial Assets and Financial Liabilities Classification

The Company’s accounting policies provide scope for assets and liabilities to be classified, at inception in to
different accounting categories. The classification of financial instruments is given in Note 33 “Analysis of
Financial Instruments by Measurement Basis™.

Defined Benefit Plan

The cost of the defined benefit pension plan is determined using an actuarial valuation. The actuarial valuation
involves making assumptions about discount rates, future salary increases, and mortality rates. Due to the long
term nature of these plans, such estimates are subject to significant uncertainty. Assumptions used are
disclosed in Note 28.

Useful Life-time of the Property, Plant, Equipment and Intangible Assets

The Company reviews the residual values, useful lives and methods of depreciation and amortization of
property, plant, equipment and intangible assets at each reporting date. The judgement of the management is
exercised in the estimation of these values, rates, methods and hence they are subject to uncertainty.
SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

The significant accounting policies applied by the Company in preparation of its Financial Statements are
included in below.

SLFRS 09 Financial Instrument

SLFRS 9 —Financial Instruments replaces LKAS 39 for annual periods on or after 1 January 2018. The
company has adopted SLFRS-09 Financial Instruments with an initial application date of 1 April 2018.




Mahindra Ideal Finance Limited

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
Year ended 31 March 2024

2.3.1.1

2.3.1.2

2.3.1.2.1

Classification & Measurement of Financial Assets and Liabilities

The Company classifies all of its financial assets based on the business model for managing the assets and the
asset’s contractual terms, measured at either:

o Amortised Cost,
e Fair Value through Other Comprehensive Income (FVOCI),
e  Fair Value through Profit or Loss

Financial liabilities, other than loan commitments and financial guarantees, are measured at amortised cost or
at FVPL or the fair value designation is applied.

Financial Assets and liabilities

Lease rental receivables, Loans and Receivables to Other Customers, Financial Investments at
Amortised Cost.

The company only measures Lease, Loans and advances to customers and other financial investments at
amortised cost if both of the following conditions are met:

e The financial asset is held within a business model with the objective to hold financial assets in order to
collect contractual cash flows

e The contractual terms of the financial asset give rise on specified dates to cash flows that are solely
payments of principal and interest (SPPI) on the principal amount outstanding.

The classification of financial liabilities under SLFRS 9 does not follow the approach for the classification on
financial assets. Financial liabilities are measured at amortised cost or fair value through profit or loss.

The details of conditions of business model assessment and the SPPI test are outlined below.

(a) Business Model Assessment

The Company determines its business model at the level that best reflects how it manages groups of financial
assets to achieve its business objective.

The Company’s business model is not assessed on an instrument-by-instrument basis, but at a higher level of
aggregated portfolios and is based on observable factors such as:

e  How the performance of the business model and the financial assets held within that business model are
evaluated and reported to the entity’s key management personnel

e The risks that affect the performance of the business model (and the financial assets held within that
business model) and, in particular, the way those risks are managed

e How managers of the business are compensated (for example, whether the compensation is based on the
fair value of the assets managed or on the contractual cash flows collected)

e The expected frequency, value and timing of sales are also important aspects of the Company’s assessment

(b) The SPPI Test

As a second step of its classification process the Company assesses the contractual terms of financial assets to
identify whether they meet the SPPI test.

An entity has a business model to hold the financial asset to collect the contractual cash flows. The
characteristics of the contractual cash flows are that of solely payments of the principal amount and interest

(referred to as “SPPI™).
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Mahindra Ideal Finance Limited

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
Year ended 31 March 2024

2.3.1.2.2

2.3.1.3

2.3.1.3.1

2.3.1.3.2

2.3.14
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Principal for the purpose of this test is defined as the fair value of the financial asset at initial recognition and
may change over the life of the financial asset (for example, if there are repayments of principal or amortisation
of the premium/ discount).

The most significant elements of interest within a lending arrangement are typically the consideration for the
time value of money and credit risk. To make the SPPI assessment, the Company applies judgement and
considers relevant factors such as the currency in which the financial asset is denominated, and the period for
which the interest rate is set.

Reclassification of Financial Assets and Liabilities

The company does not reclassify its financial assets or liability subsequent to their initial recognition, apart
from the exceptional circumstances in which the Company acquires. disposes of, or terminates a business line.
The Company did not reclassify any of its financial assets or liabilities in year 2023/24.

De-recognition of Financial Instruments

Financial Assets

A financial asset (or, where applicable, a part of a financial asset or part of a group of similar financial assets)
is derecognized when the rights to receive cash flows from the financial asset have expired.

Financial Liabilities

A financial liability is derecognized when the obligation under the liability is discharged, cancelled or expires.
Impairment of Financial Assets

Overview of the Expected Credit Loss (ECL) Principles

The Company’s loan loss impairment method by using forward-looking Expected Credit Loss (ECL) approach.
From 1 April 2018, the Company has been recording the allowance for expected credit losses for all loans and
other debt financial assets not held at FVPL, in this section all referred to as ‘financial instruments’. Equity
instruments are not subject to impairment under SLFRS 9.

The ECL allowance is based on the credit losses expected to arise over the life of the asset. The 12 months
ECL is the portion of Life time ECLs that represent the ECLs that result from default events on a financial
instrument that are possible within the 12 months after the reporting date.

Both Life time ECLs and 12 months ECLs are calculated on either an individual basis or a collective basis,
depending on the nature of the underlying portfolio of financial instruments.

The Company has established a policy to perform an assessment, at the end of each reporting period, of whether
a financial instrument’s credit risk has increased significantly since initial recognition, by considering the
change in the risk of default occurring over the remaining life of the financial instrument.

Based on the above process, the Company groups its loans into Stage 1, Stage 2 and Stage 3.

Srage 1

When loans are first recognised, the Company recognises an allowance based on 12 months ECLs. Stage |
loans also include facilities where the credit risk has improved and the loan has been reclassified from Stage

<
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2.3.1.4.2

Stage 2

When a loan has shown a significant increase in credit risk since origination, the Company records an
allowance for the Life time ECLs. Stage 2 loans also include facilities, where the credit risk has improved and
the loan has been reclassified from Stage 3.

Stage 3

Loans considered credit-impaired. The Company records an allowance for the Life time ECLs.

The Calculation of Expected Credit Loss (ECL)

The Company calculates ECLs under three staging approaches to measure the expected cash shortfalls,
discounted at an approximation to the EIR. A cash shortfall is the difference between the cash flows that are
due to an entity in accordance with the contract and the cash flows that the entity expects to receive. The
mechanics of the ECL calculations are outlined below and the key elements are as follows:

Definition of default

The Company considers a financial asset to be in "default" and therefore Stage 3 (credit impaired) for ECL
calculations when the borrower account becomes 90 days past due on its contractual payments.

Probability of Default (PD)

The Probability of Default (PD) is an estimate of the likelihood of default over a given time horizon. A default
may only happen at a certain time over the assessed period, if the facility has not been previously recognised
and is still in the portfolio.

However, for placements with Banks and other financial investments classified as amortised cost and fair value
through other Comprehensive Income the Company relies on external credit rating in determining their
respective PDs.

EAD

The Exposure at Default (EAD) is an estimate of the exposure at a future default date, taking into account
expected changes in the exposure after the reporting date, including repayments of principal and interest,
whether scheduled by contract or otherwise, expected drawdowns on committed facilities, and accrued interest
from missed payments.

LGD

The Loss Given Default (LGD) is an estimate of the loss arising in the case where a default occurs at a given
time. It is based on the difference between the contractual cash flows due and those that the lender would
expect to receive.

The mechanics of the ECL method are summarized below:
Stage 1

The 12 months ECL is calculated as the portion of LTECL that represent the ECLs that result from default
events on a financial instrument that are possible within the 12 months after the reporting date. The Company
calculates the 12 months ECL allowance based on the expectation of a default occurring in the 12 months
following the reporting date. These expected 12-month default probabilities are applied to a forecast EAD and
multiplied by the expected LGD and discounted by an approximation to the original EIR. This calculation is
ee scenarios, as explained above.
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Stage 2

When a loan has shown a significant increase in credit risk since origination, the Company records an
allowance for the LTECLs. The mechanics are similar to those explained above but PDs and LGDs are
estimated over the lifetime of the instrument. The expected cash shortfalls are discounted by an approximation
to the original EIR.

Stage 3

For loans considered credit-impaired, the Company recognises the LTECL for these loans. The method is
similar to that for Stage 2 assets, with the PD set at 100%. The Company recognises the interest income on
loans classified under stage 3 at the effective interest rate on amortised cost.

Assessment of significant increase in credit risk

When determining whether the credit risk has increased significantly since initial recognition, the Company
considers both quantitative and qualitative information and analysis based on the Company’s historical
experience, including forward-looking information. The Company considers reasonable and supportable
information that is relevant and available without undue cost and effort. The Company's accounting policy is
not to use the practical expedient that the financial assets with 'low' credit risk at the reporting date are deemed
not to have had a significant increase in credit risk. As a result the Company monitors all financial assets and
loan commitments that are subject to impairment for significant increase in credit risk.

As a part of the qualitative assessment of whether a customer is in default, the Company also considers a
variety of instances that may indicate unlikeliness to pay. In such instances, the Company treats the customer
with an increased credit risk level, following are such instances:

- Stage 1 and Stage 2 facilities of a Stage 3 customer are also classified as Stage 3.

- Stage 1 facilities of a Stage 2 customer are classified as Stage 2.

- Facilities related to management identified risk elevated industries are classified as Stage 3.

- Rescheduled facilities are categorized based on their aggregate days past due, ie, the aggregate of the present
age of the facility and the age prior to reschedule.

- Originated credit impaired assets :-These are financial assets that are credit impaired on initial recognition.
They are recorded at fair value at initial recognition and interest income is subsequently recognized based on
credit adjusted EIR. ECLs are recognized or released to the extent that there is subsequent change in expected
credit losses.

Forward Looking Information

In its ECL models, the Company relies on a broad range of forward looking information as economic inputs,
such as:

Quantitative Qualitative

DP Growth ! ‘Government Polici
Inflation Status of the Industry Business
| RegulatoryIm
Interest Rates Global Economic Environment

xchange Rates

ke &

The inputs and models used for calculating ECLs may not always capture all the characteristics of the market
at the date of the financial statements.

To reflect the uncertainties in the calculation of expected credit losses, the Company has not changed the
weightages assigned for multiple economic scenarios during the year. Weightages assigned for each scenario
is given below along with the weightages used in 2022/23.
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The inputs and models used for calculating ECLs may not always capture all characteristics of the market as
at the date of the financial statements. To reflect this, qualitative adjustments or overlays are occasionally made
as temporary adjustments when such differences are significantly material.

To ensure completeness and accuracy, the company obtains necessary data primarily from publications of
Central Bank of Sri Lanka.

Determination of Fair Value

The Fair value is the price that would be received to sell an asset or paid to transfer a liability in an orderly
transaction between market participants at the measurement date. The fair value measurement is based on the
presumption that the transaction to sell the asset or transfer the liability takes place either:

-In the principal market for the asset or liability, or
-In the absence of a principal market, in the most advantageous market for the asset or liability

The principal or the most advantageous market must be accessible by the Company.

The fair value of an asset or a liability is measured using the assumptions that market participants would use
when pricing the asset or liability, assuming that market participants act in their economic best interest.

A fair value measurement of a non-financial asset takes into account a market participant's ability to generate
economic benefits by using the asset in its highest and best use or by selling it to another market participant
that would use the asset in its highest and best use.

The Company uses valuation techniques that are appropriate in the circumstances and for which sufficient data
is available to measure fair value, maximising the use of relevant observable inputs and minimising the use of
unobservable inputs.

All assets and liabilities for which fair value is measured or disclosed in the financial statements are categorised
within the fair value hierarchy, described as follows, based on the lowest level input that is significant to the
fair value measurement as a whole:

-Level 1 - Quoted (unadjusted) market prices in active markets for identical assets or liabilities

-Level 2 - Valuation techniques for which the lowest level input that is significant to the fair value measurement
is directly or indirectly observable

-Level 3 -Valuation techniques for which the lowest level input that is significant to the fair value measurement
is unobservable

For assets and liabilities that are recognised in the financial statements on a recurring basis, the Company
determines whether transfers have occurred between levels in the hierarchy by re-assessing categorisation
(based on the lowest level input that is significant to the fair value measurement as a whole) at the end of each
reporting period.

The disclosure of fair value of financial instruments is disclosed in Note 34 to the Financial Statements.

Lease

The determination of whether an arrangement is a lease, or contains a lease, is based on the substance of the
arrangement and requires an assessment of whether the fulfillment of the arrangement is dependent on the use
of a specif] ts and the arrangement conveys a right to use the asset.
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2.3.22

2.3.3

2.3.4

Finance Lease
Company as a lessor

Assets leased to customers which transfer substantially all the risks and rewards associated with ownership
other than legal title, are classified as ‘Finance Lease”. Amount receivables under finance lease are included
under ‘Lease Rental Receivables’ in the Statement of Financial Position after deduction of unearned lease
income and accumulated impairment losses. When assets are held subject to a finance lease, the present value
of the lease payments, discounted at the rate of interest implicit in the lease, is recognized as a receivable. The
difference between the total payments receivable under the lease and the present value of the receivable is
recognized as unearned finance income, which is allocated to accounting periods reflect a constant periodic
rate of return.

SLFRS 16 — Leases
Company as a lessee

SLFRS 16 sets out the principles for the recognition, measurement, presentation and disclosure of leases for
both parties to a contract, i.e. lessee and lessor. SLFRS 16 supersedes Sri Lanka Accounting Standard - LKAS
17 (Leases) and related interpretations, SLFRS 16 introduces a single accounting model for the lessee,
eliminating the present classification of leases in LKAS 17 as either operating leases or finance leases.

The company has adopted SLFRS 16 using modified retrospective method from 1 April 2019, without restating
comparatives for the 2018/19 reporting period, as permitted under the specific transitional provisions in the
standard. At the date of adoption, right of use was recognized as amount equal to the lease liability, adjusted
by the amount of prepaid lease rentals.

Under this method, the standard is applied retrospectively and the cumulative effect as at initial date of
application of the standard i.e 1 April 2019 has been duly adjusted. The company elected to use the transitional
practical expedient to not reassess whether an existing contract forms a lease as at Ist April 2019, under the
definitions provided in the standard. Instead, the company applied the standard only to contracts that were
previously identified as leases applying LKAS 17 at the date of initial application.

The contracts which were previously classified as “operating leases” under the principles of LKAS 17 -Leases,
have been recognize as “right of- use assets” with the adoption of SLFRS 16 -Leases.

Cash and cash equivalents

Cash and cash equivalents as referred to in the cash flow statement comprises cash in hand, and amounts due
from banks on demand or with an original maturity of three months or less.

Property, Plant and Equipment

Property, plant and equipment is stated at cost excluding the costs of day-to—day servicing, less accumulated
depreciation and accumulated impairment in value. Changes in the expected useful life are accounted for by
changing the amortisation period or method, as appropriate, and treated as changes in accounting estimates.

Depreciation is calculated using the straight-line method to write down the cost of property and equipment to
their residual values over their estimated useful lives. The estimated useful lives are as follows:

Category Years
Furniture & Fittings 05
Office Equipment 05
Motor Vehicles 05

Computer Equipment 05
F et el 1'\
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2.3.6

The depreciation method and residual values of assets are reviewed at each financial year-end and, if there has
been a significant change in the expected pattern of consumption of the future economic benefits embodied in
the asset, the method shall be changed to reflect the changed pattern.

Property plant & Equipment is derecognized on disposal or when no future economic benefits are expected
from its use. Any gain or loss arising on derecognition of the assets (calculated as the difference between the
net disposal proceeds and carrying amount of the assets) is recognized in ‘Other Operating Income’ in the
Statement of Comprehensive Income (Profit or Loss) in the year the asset is recognized.

Right-Of-Use Assets
Basis of recognition

The Company applies Sri Lanka Accounting Standard SLFRS 16 “Leases™ in accounting for all lease hold
rights except for leases due to expire during the financial year and leases on which implications to the financial
statements are not considered to be material. The company uses its judgment to determine whether an operating
lease contract qualifies for recognition of right-of-use assets. The company applies judgements in evaluating
the level of certainty whether the option of renewing the lease exits or otherwise. That is, it considers all
relevant factors that create an economic benefits for it to exercise either the renewal or termination.

Basis of measurement

The company recognises right-of-use assets at the date of commencement of the lease, which is the present
value of lease payments to be made over the lease term. Right-of-Use assets are measured at cost less any
accumulated amortization and impairment losses and adjusted for any re-measurement of lease liabilities. The
cost of the right-of-use assets includes the amount of lease liabilities recognised, initial direct cost incurred,
and lease payments made at or before the commencement date less any lease incentives received. Right of use
assets are amortised on the straight line basis over the lease term.

When measuring lease liabilities for leases that were classified previously as operating leases, the company
discounted future lease payments due as of 1 April 2019 using the incremental borrowing rate as at 1 April
2019. The rate applicable was 14%.

The Company has elected not to recognise right-of-use assets and lease liabilities for leases of low-value assets
and short-term leases. The company recognises the lease payments associated with these leases as an expense
on a straight-line basis over the lease term.

Intangible assets

The company’s other intangible assets include the value of computer software. An intangible asset is
recognised only when its cost can be measured reliably and it is probable that the expected future economic
benefits that are attributable to it will flow to the company. Intangible assets acquired separately are measured
on initial recognition at cost. Following initial recognition, intangible assets are carried at cost less any
accumulated amortisation and any accumulated impairment losses.

The useful lives of intangible assets are assessed to be either finite or indefinite. Intangible assets with finite
lives are amortised over the useful economic life. The amortisation period and the amortisation method for an
intangible asset with a finite useful life are reviewed at least at each financial yearend.

Changes in the expected useful life or the expected pattern of consumption of future economic benefits
embodied in the asset are accounted for by changing the amortisation period or method, as appropriate, and

they are treated as changes in accounting estimates. The amortisation expense on intangible assets with finite
lives is presented as a separate line item in the statement of comprehensive income.

Computer System software is amortised over: 10 years
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2.3.7

2.3.8

2.3.9

2.3.10

Other Assets

All other assets are stated at amortised cost less accumulated impairment losses.

Inventories

Inventories include stationeries and these are valued at the lower of cost and net realizable value.

Impairment of non—financial assets

The company assesses at each reporting date whether there is an indication that an asset may be impaired. If
any indication exists, or when annual impairment testing for an asset is required, the company estimates the
asset’s recoverable amount. An asset’s recoverable amount is the higher of an asset’s or cash generating unit’s
fair value less costs to sell and its value in use. Where the carrying amount of an asset or cash generating unit
exceeds its recoverable amount, the asset is considered impaired and is written down to its recoverable amount.

In assessing value in use, the estimated future cash flows are discounted to their present value using a pre—tax
discount rate that reflects current market assessments of the time value of money and the risks specific to the
asset, In determining fair value less costs to sell, an appropriate valuation model is used. These calculations
are corroborated by valuation multiples, quoted share prices for publicly traded subsidiaries or other available
fair value indicators.

An assessment is made at each reporting date as to whether there is any indication that previously recognised
impairment losses may no longer exist or may have decreased. If such indication exists, the company estimates
the asset’s or cash generating unit’s recoverable amount. A previously recognized impairment loss is reversed
only if there has been a change in the assumptions used to determine the asset’s recoverable amount since the
last impairment loss was recognised. The reversal is limited so that the carrying amount of the asset does not
exceed its recoverable amount, nor exceeds the carrying amount that would have been determined, net of
depreciation, had no impairment loss been recognised for the asset in prior years. Such reversal is recognised
in the statement of comprehensive income.

Employee Retirement Benefits

Defined Contribution Plan Costs

Defined contribution plan is a post- employment benefit plan under which an entity pays fixed contributions
into a separate entity and will have no legal or constructive obligation to pay further amounts. Obligations for
contributions to a defined contribution plan are recognized as a Personnel Expenses in the Statement of
comprehensive income in the periods during which services are rendered by employees. Employees are eligible
for employees’ Provident Fund and Employees Trust Fund Contributions in line with the respective Statutes
and regulations. Accordingly, the company contributes 12% and 3% of gross emoluments of employees to
Employees’ Provident Fund and Employee Trust Fund respectively and is recognized as an expense under
“Personnel Expenses”.

Defined Benefit Plan Costs

A defined benefit plan is a post-employment benefit plan other than a defined contribution plan. The liability
recognized in the Statement of Financial Position in respect of defined benefit plan is the present value of the
defined benefit obligation at the reporting date. The defined benefit obligation is calculated using the projected
unit credit method. The present value of the defined benefit obligation is determined by discounting the
estimated future cash flows using interest rate that are denominated in the currency in which the benefit will
be paid, and that have terms of maturity approximating to the terms of the liability.

Provision has been made in the Financial Statements for retiring gratuities from the first year of service for all
employees, in conformity with LKAS 19-“Employee Benefits™.

However, according to the payment of Gratuity Act No.12of 1983, the liability for payment to an employee
arises only after the completion of 3 years continued services. The liability is not externally funded.
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2.3.12

2.3.13

2.3.14

Provisions

Provisions are recognised when the company has a present obligation (legal or constructive) as a result of a
past event, and it is probable that an outflow of resources embodying economic benefits will be required to
seftle the obligation and a reliable estimate can be made of the amount of the obligation. The expense relating
to any provision is presented in the statement of comprehensive income net of any reimbursement.

Other Liabilities

Other liabilities are recorded at the cash value to be realized when settled.

Foreign currency translation

Transactions in foreign currencies are initially recorded at the functional currency rate of exchange ruling at
the date of the transaction.

Monetary assets and liabilities denominated in foreign currencies are retranslated at the functional currency
rate of exchange at the statement of financial position date. All differences arising on non-trading activities
are taken to ‘Other operating income’ in the income statement.

Recognition of income and expenses

Revenue is recognised to the extent that it is probable that the economic benefits will flow to the company and
the revenue can be reliably measured. The following specific recognition criteria must also be met before
revenue is recognised.

Interest income and interest expense

For all financial instruments measured at amortised cost, interest bearing financial assets classified as
available- for-sale and financial instruments designated at fair value through profit or loss, interest income or
expense is recorded using the Effective Interest Rate. Effective Interest Rate is the rate that exactly discounts
estimated future cash payments or receipts through the expected life of the financial instrument or a shorter
period, where appropriate, to the net carrying amount of the financial asset or financial liability. The calculation
takes into account all contractual terms of the financial instrument (for example, prepayment options) and
includes any fees or incremental costs that are directly attributable to the instrument and are an integral part of
the Effective Interest Rate, but not future credit losses.

The carrying amount of the financial asset or financial liability is adjusted if the company revises its estimates
of payments or receipts. The adjusted carrying amount is calculated based on the original Effective Interest
Rate and the change in carrying amount is recorded as Interest Income’ for financial assets and Interest
Expense for financial liabilities. However, for a reclassified financial asset for which the company
subsequently increases its estimates of future cash receipts as a result of increased recoverability of those cash
receipts, the effect of that increase is recognised as an adjustment to the Effective Interest Rate from the date
of the change in estimate.

Once the recorded value of a financial asset or a group of similar financial assets has been reduced due to an

impairment loss, interest income continues to be recognised using the rate of interest used to discount the future
cash flows for the purpose of measuring the impairment loss.

Charter=d
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(iii)

(iv)

2315

Fee and commission income

The company earns fee and commission income {rom a diverse range of services it provides to its customers.
Fee income can be divided into the following two categories:

- Fee income earned from services that are provided over a certain period of time.
- Fees earned for the provision of services over a period of time are accrued over that period. These fees
include commission income and service charges.

Fee income from providing transaction services

Fees arising from negotiating or participating in the negotiation of a transaction for a third party are recognised
on completion of the underlying transaction. Fees or components of fees that are linked to a certain
performance are recognised after fulfilling the corresponding criteria.

Dividend income
Dividend income is recognised when the company’s right to receive the payment is established.
Expenditure Recognition

Expenses are recognized in profit or loss in the statement of comprehensive Income on the basis of a direct
association between the cost incurred and the earning of specific items of income. All expenditure incurred in
the running of the business and in maintaining the property, plant and equipment in a state of efficiency has
been charged to the statement of Comprehensive Income (Profit or loss). For the purpose of presentation of
the statement of comprehensive Income, the “function of expenses” method has been adopted, on the basis
that it presents fairly the element of the company’s performance.

Taxes

Current Tax

The provision for the income tax is based on the elements of the income and expenditure as reported in the
Financial Statements and computed in accordance with the provisions of Inland Revenue Act, No. 24 of 2017.

Current income tax assets and liabilities for the current and prior years are measured at the amount expected
to be recovered from or paid to the taxation authorities. The tax rates and tax laws used to compute the amount
are those that are enacted or substantively enacted by the reporting date.

Deferred Tax

Deferred tax is provided on temporary differences at the reporting date between the tax bases of assets and
liabilities and their carrying amounts for financial reporting purposes. Deferred tax liabilities are recognized
for all taxable temporary differences.

Deferred tax assets are recognized for all deductible temporary differences, carry forward of unused tax credits
and unused tax losses, to the extent that it is probable that taxable profit will be available against which the
deductible temporary differences, and the carry forward of unused tax credit and unused tax losses can be
utilized.

The carrying amount of deferred tax assets is reviewed at each reporting date and reduced to the extent that it
is no longer probable that sufficient taxable profit will be available to allow all or part of the deferred tax asset
to be utilized. Unrecognized deferred tax assets are reassessed at each reporting date and are recognized to the
extent that it has become probable that future taxable profit will allow the deferred tax asset to be recovered.
Deferred tax assets and liabilities are measured at the tax rates that are expected to apply in the year when the
asset is realized or the liability is settled, based on tax rates and tax laws that have been enacted at the reporting
date.
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2.3.16

2.3.17

Deferred tax assets and deferred tax liabilities are offset if a legally enforceable right exists to set off current
tax assets against current tax liabilities and the deferred taxes relate to the same taxable entity and the same
taxation authority.

Value Added Tax on Financial Services and Social Security Contribution Levy

Value Added Tax on Financial Services is calculated at the rate of 18% in accordance with the provisions of
the Value Added Tax Act No. 14 of 2002 and amendments thereto. The Social Security Contribution Levy is
calculated at the rate of 2.5% on the turnover applicable for Value Added Tax on Financial Services with effect
from 01% October 2022.

Regulatory provisions
a) Deposit Insurance and Liquidity Support Scheme

In terms of the Finance Companies Direction No.2 of 2010 “Insurance of Deposit Liabilities™ issued on 27
September 2010 and subsequent amendments thereto, all Finance Companies are required to insure their
deposit liabilities in the Deposit Insurance Scheme operated by the Monetary Board in terms of Sri Lanka
Deposit Insurance Scheme Regulations No.1 of 2010 issued under Sections 32A to 32E of the Monetary Law
Act with effect from 1 October 2010.The said Scheme was renamed as the “Sri Lanka Deposit Insurance and
Liquidity Support Scheme™ as per the Sri Lanka Deposit Insurance and Liquidity Support Scheme Regulation
No. 1 of 2013.

The deposits to be insured shall include demand, time and savings deposit liabilities and exclude the following.

*  Deposit liabilities to member institutions

»  Deposit liabilities to the Government of Sri Lanka

*  Deposit liabilities to shareholders, directors, key management personnel and other related parties as
defined in Finance Companies Act (Corporate Governance) Direction No.3 of 2008 for Registered
Finance Companies

= Deposit liabilities held as collateral against any accommodation granted

»  Deposits falling within the meaning of abandoned property in terms of the Banking Act and dormant
deposits in terms of the Finance Companies Act, funds of which have been transferred to the Central
Bank of Sri Lanka in terms of the relevant Directions issued by the Monetary Board.

Registered Finance Companies are required to pay a premium of 0.15% on total amount of eligible deposits
as at end of the month with in a period of 15 days from the end of the respective month.

b) Crop Insurance Levy (CIL)

As per the provisions of the Section 14 of the Finance Act No.12 of 2013, the CIL was introduced with effect
from April 1, 2013 and is payable to the National Insurance Trust Fund. Currently, the CIL is payable at 1%
of the profit after tax.

Related Party Transactions

Disclosure has been made in respect of the transactions in which one party has the liability to control or

exercise significant influence over the financial and operating policies/ decisions of the other, irrespective of
whether a price is being charged.
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2.3.18

2.3.19

Segment Reporting

The Company’s segmental reporting is based on the following operating segments identified based on products
and services;

- Finance Leases
- Term Loans

- Gold Loans

- Others

A segment is a distinguishable component of a Company that is engaged in providing products and services.
(Business segment, which is subject to risks and rewards that are different from those of other segments).

Segment results, assets and liabilities include items directly attributable to a segment as well as those that can
be allocated on a reasonable basis.

The accounting policies adopted for segment reporting are those accounting policies adopted for preparing the
financial statements of the Company.
Sri Lanka Accounting Standards Not Yet Effective as at 31 March 2024

- SLFRS 17 Insurance Contracts
SLFRS 17 is a comprehensive new accounting standard for insurance contracts covering recognition and
measurement, presentation and disclosure. On effective, SLFRS 17 will replace SLFRS 4 (Insurance
Contracts)
No material impact on the financial statements of the Company.

- Amendments to LKAS 1 — Presentation of Financial Statements
Amendments to LKAS | relate to classification of liabilities with covenants as current or non-current. The
amendments clarify that if an entity’s right to defer settlement of a liability is subject to the entity complying
with the required covenants only at a date subsequent to the reporting period (“future covenants™), the entity
has a right to defer settlement of the liability even if it does not comply with those covenants at the end of the
reporting period. The requirements apply only to liabilities arising from loan arrangements. The amendments
are effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1 January 2024,
No material impact on the financial statements of the Company.

- Amendments to LKAS 12 — Income taxes
The amendments to LKAS 12 introduce a mandatory exception in LKAS 12 from recognising and disclosing
deferred tax assets and liabilities related to Pillar Two income taxes. An entity is required to disclose that it
has applied the exception to recognising and disclosing information about deferred tax assets and liabilities

related to Pillar Two income taxes.

No impact on the financial statements of the Company.
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4.1

4.2

INCOME

Interest Income (4.1)

Fee and Commission Income (5)
Other Operating Income (6)
Total Income

NET INTEREST INCOME
Interest Income

From Placements with Banks and Other Financial Institutions
From Government Securities

From Lease Rental Receivables

From Loans and Advances

From Gold Advances

From Refundable Deposits

Total Interest Income

Interest Expense

Due to Banks

Due to Customers

On Intercompany Borrowings

On Obligation to Make the Lease Payment for Right of Use Assets
Total Interest Expenses

Net Interest Income

FEE AND COMMISSION INCOME

Commission Income
Fee and Commission Income

OTHER OPERATING INCOME

Dividend Income

Service Charges - Gold Loans

Service Charges - Leases & Other Loans
Fair Value Gain or Loss

Other Operating Income

Total Other Operating Income

2024
LKR

2,153,618,043
10,249,062
145,173,275

2023
LKR

1,805,299,948
13,067,675
105,911,732

2,309,040,380

1,924,279,355

2024
LKR

70,723,448
169,043,385
574,634,047
154,281.660

1,183,588.,966
1,346,537

2023
LKR

55,087,026
60,364,968
641,168,494
239,486,405
807,982,594
1,210,461

2,153,618,043

1,805,299,948

377,945,850 434,895,016
646,062,235 452,995,806
37,872,226 33,835,137
1,061,880,311 921,725,959

1,091,737,732

883,573,989

2024 2023
LKR LKR
10,249,062 13,067,675
10,249,062 13,067,675
2024 2023
LKR LKR
179,520 240,000
74,157,350 88,672,799
14,487,892 -
45,883,569
10,464,944 16,998,933
145,173,275 105,911,732




Mahindra Ideal Finance Limited

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
Year ended 31 March 2024

10.

IMPAIRMENT CHARGES FOR LOANS AND OTHER LOSSES

Charge/(write-back) to the statement of comprehensive income
— Impairment on individually significant loans

— Impairment on collective loan portfolio

— Write-offs net of recoveries

Total Impairment Charge

Lease Rental Receivables (Note 17.2.a)

Stage 1
Stage 2
Stage 3

Loans and Advances (Note 18.2.a)
Stage 1
Stage 2
Stage 3

Gold Advances
Stage 1
Stage 2
Stage 3

PERSONNEL EXPENSES

Salaries

Employers' Contribution to Employee's Provident Fund
Employers' Contribution to Employee's Trust Fund
Gratuity Charge for the year

Other Staff Related Expenses

Total Personnel expenses

OTHER OPERATING EXPENSES

Directors' Emoluments

Auditors' Remuneration

Professional and Legal Expenses

Office Administration and Establishment Expenses
Advertising and Promotional Expenses

License and Renewal Fees

Other Expenses

Total Other Operating expenses

VALUE ADDED TAX ON FINANCIAL SERVICES AND SSCL

Qanial Qi rﬂk-mu‘.’)l.‘ QI N

2024 2023
LKR LKR
(12,422.784) 1,568,253
(97,507,252) 20,749,444
60,058,221 48,665,419
(49.871,815) 70,983,116
2024 2023
LKR LKR
(5,674,981) (20,244,828)
(29,921,311) 5,722,590
(50,953,828) 20,852,917
(86,550,120) 6,330,679
4,985,876 (18,581,605)
(8,415.989) 1,983,542
(24,314,060) 20,612,805
(27,744,173) 4,014,741
9,057,810 2,742,606
(1,501,914) 5,548,169
(3,191,639) 3,681,501
4,364,256 11,972,276
2024 2023
LKR LKR
373,156,843 278,909,249
33,224,198 27,527,802
8,303,550 6,881,950
12,673,570 9,450,813
74,217,224 27,204,768

501,575,385

349,974,582

2024 2023
LKR LKR
4,499,783 5,600,000
1,663,063 965,613
14,263,904 8,989,716
176,433,985 126,056,473
65,632,021 35,933,596
1,083,080 4,051,298
67,835,890 54,699,552
345,864,952 236,296,248
2024 2023
LKR LKR
116,700,020 88.673.219
1A 208 127 A 277 ThA



Mahindra Ideal Finance Limited

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
Year ended 31 March 2024

11.

11.2

12.1

12.2

INCOME TAX EXPENSES
The major component of income tax for the period ended 31 March as follows;

Income Statement

Current Income Tax

Income Tax for the Period

Due to rate reduction

Tax Adjustment with Final Payment

Deferred Tax (Note 29)
Due to change in temporary differences
Due to rate change

Income Tax Expenses reported in the Income Statement

Statement of Other Comprehensive Income

Deffered Tax related to items recognized in OCI during the vear

Net Gain/(L.oss) on Actuarial Gains/Losses during the year

Income Tax Expenses reported in the Other Comprehensive Income

Total Income Tax Expense for the year
Income Tax Rate Applicable

Reconciliation of Accounting Profit and Taxable Income

2024 2023
LKR LKR
91,687.602 71,056,252
248.879 (258.011)
5,962,017 2,255,098
" (6.858.952)
97.898.498 66,194,388
(2.430.574) 639,287
(2.430.574) 639,287
95,467,924 66,833,675
30% 30%

A reconciliation between the tax expense and the accounting profit multiplied by Income tax rate for the year ended 31 March 2024 as

follows.

Accounting Profit / (Loss) Before Income Taxation

Aggregate allowable expenditure
Tax loss utilised
Aggregate disallowable expenditure

Tax at statutory rates
Less : Due to rate reduction
Less : Tax Adjustment with Final Payment

Deferred taxation charged/(Reversal)
Less : Due to rate change

Effective Tax Rate

BASIC AND DILUTED EARNING PER ORDINARY SHARES

2024 2023
LKR LKR
201,190,201 153,092,202
(69.686,692)  (169.784.887)
174,121,831 279,979,545
305.625.340 263,286,860
91,687,602 71,056,252
248.879 (258.011)
91,936,481 70,798,241
5,962,017 2,255,008
g (6,858.952)
97.898.498 66.194.388
48.66% 43.24%

Basic and diluted earning per share is calculated by dividing net profit for the period attributable to ordinary share holders by weighted

average number of ordinary shares outstanding during the period, as per LKAS-33-Earning Per Share.

The following reflect the income and share details used in Basic and Diluted Earning Per Share computation;

Amount Used as Numerators
Profit attributable to Ordinary Share Holders

2024
LKR

103.291.703

145,639.098

nT1

2023
LKR

86.897.814

145.639.098

nan



Mabhindra Ideal Finance Limited

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
Year ended 31 March 2024

13.  CASH AND BANK BALANCES

Cash in Hand
Bank Balances

14, INVESTMENT IN GOVERNMENT SECURITIES

Investment in Treasury Bills with original maturity less than 3 months
Investment in Treasury Bills with original maturity more than 3 months
Investment in Reverse Repurchase Agreements (less than 3 months)

14.1 Financial Investments-Measured at Fair Value Through PL

Investment in Unit Trust Funds

15. PLACEMENT WITH BANKS AND OTHER FINANCIAL INSTITUTIONS

Fixed Deposits placed with banks original maturity less than 3 months
Fixed Deposits placed with banks original maturity more than 3 months

16. GOLD ADVANCES

Gold Advances
Less : Allowance for Impairment Losses
Net Gold Advances

Collective Impairment

As at 1 April
Charges/(reversals) for the year
As at 31 March

17.  LEASE RENTAL RECEIVABLES

Rental Receivable on Lease
Gross Rentals Receivables
Less: Unecarned Income

Less : Rentals Received in Advance
Net Rentals Receivables before charging Allowance for Impairment Losses

Less : Allowance for Impairment Losses (Note 17.2)
Total Net Rentals Receivable

17.1 als Receivable on Leases 'LKR

As at 31st March 2024

Chartered

A untants Net Rentals
CCO

Receivables

Allowance for
Impairment Losses

Grjoss Rentals
[feceivables

2.114,556.470
S84 202 430

24 .258.088
13 7254 909

2.090.298,382
570.947 522

2024 2023
LKR LKR
102.627.472 127.864.098
8.140.248 37,719,598
110.767.720 165.583.696
2024 2023
LKR LKR
- 157,808,254
816.029.643 300,329,263

1,002,994,685

1.819.024.328 458,137,517
2024 2023
LKR LKR
1,001,278,217 -
1.001.278,217 -
2024 2023
LKR LKR
100,000,000 -
255.848.060 445268915
355,848,060 445,268,915
2024 2023
LKR LKR

4,530.164.582
(25,002,009)

3.,971.326,248
(20,637,753)

4,505,162,573 3,950,688,495
2024 2023
LKR LKR
20,637,753 8.665.477
4.364.256 11,972,276
25,002,009 20,637,753
2024 2023
LKR LKR

3,788.875,387

3.224.676,754

3.788.875,387

3,224.676.754

(796.367,769) (656,352.549)
2,992,507,618 2,568,324,205
(35,457,655) (14,828.488)
2,957,049,963 2,553,495,717
(92.920.215) (179.470.334)

2.864,129,749

2,374,025.383

As at 31st March 2023

Allowance for
Impairment
Losses

Gross Rentals
Receivables

29.933,070
43176219

1,120.683.414
813 587 566

Net Rentals
Receivables

1.090.750.344
790.411.347



Mabhindra Ideal IFinance Limited

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

Year ended 31 March 2024

17.  LEASE RENTAL RECEIVABLES (Contd...)
17.2  Allowance for Impairment Losses 'LKR.

(a) Allowance for Impairment with stage wise

Balance as at 01 April 2023
Charges/(Reversals) for the year
Amount written off

Stage -1

29,933,069
(5,674,981)

Collective
Stage -2

43.176.219
(29.921,311)

Stage -3

101,312,999
(46,060,251)

Individual
Stage -3

5,048,046
(4.893.577)

Total

179,470,334
(86,550,120)

Balance as at 31 March 2024

(b) Movement in allowance for impairment

As at 01 April
Charges/(reversals) for the year
Amounts written off

As at 31 March

Individual impairment
Collective impairment
Total

24,258,088 13,254,909 55,252,748 154,470 92.920.214
2024 2023
LKR LKR

179,470,334 173,139,654

(86.550,120) 6.330,679

92,920,214 179.470,334

154,470 5.048.046

92,765,744 174,422,287

92,920,214 179,470,334

(c) Movements in Individual and Collective impairment allowance for Leasing & Hire Purchase Rentals Receivables during the year

Individual Impairment

Asat | April
Charges/(reversals) for the year
Amounts written off

As at 31 March

Collective Impairment

Asat 1 April
Charges/(reversals) for the year
Amounts written off

As at 31 March

Total

17.3  Credit Exposure and ECL Stage wise movement

An analysis of changes in the gross carrying amount and the corresponding ECL of Lease Rental Receivables is as follows :

Gross exposure reconciliation

As at 31st March 2024

Particulars

Gross carrying amount balance as at 1 April 2023
Changes due to loans recognized in the opening balance that

have:

- Transfers to Stage |
- Transfers to Stage 2
- Transfers to Stage 3

- Loans that have been derecognized during the period

New loans originated during the year
Write-offs
Remeasurement of net exposure

Gross

at 31 March 2024

Stage 1
1,120.683.414

259,846,167

Stage 2
833,587,566

(180.594.784)

2024 2023
LKR LKR
5,048,046 10,525,173
(4,893,577) (5,477,127)
154.469 5.048.,046
2024 2023
LKR LKR
174.422.287 162,614,481
(81.656,543) 11,807,806
92,765,744 174,422,287
92,920,214 179,470,333
Stage 3 Total
599,224,738 2,553,495.717

(79.251,383)

(207.837.062) 319,394,085 (111,557.023) .
(25314339)  (87.748.669) 113,063,008 -
(289.222.180)  (226298.799)  (148.852.603) (664,373.582)
1.563.366.281 108.204.972 27,922,744 1.699.493,997
(1.966.316) (8.152,365) (92,296,742) (102.415,423)
(304,999 .494) (174,189.576) (49.961,676) (529.150,746)
2.114,556,469 584,202,430 258.291,063 2.957.049.963




Mahindra ldeal Finance Limited

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

Year ended 31 March 2024

17.4

As at 31st March 2023

Particulars
Gross carrying amount balance as at 1 April 2022

Changes due to loans recognized in the opening balance that

have:

- Transfers to Stage 1

- Transfers to Stage 2

- Transfers to Stage 3

- Loans that have been derecognized during the period
New loans originated during the vear

Write-offs

Remeasurement of net exposure

Gross carrying amount balance as at 31 March 2023

Reconciliation of ECL balance
As at 31st March 2024

Particulars
ECL allowance balance as at 1 April 2023

Changes due to loans recognized in the opening balance that

have:

- Transfers to Stage 1

- Transfers to Stage 2

- Transfers to Stage 3

- Loans that have been derecognized during the period
New loans originated during the year

Write-offs

Net remeasurement of loss allowance

ECL allowance balance as at 31 March 2024

As at 31st March 2023

Particulars

ECL allowance balance as at 1 April 2022
Changes due to loans recognized in the opening balance that
have:

- Transfers to Stage |

- Transfers to Stage 2

- Transfers to Stage 3

- Loans that have been derecognized during the period
New loans originated during the year

Write-offs

Net remeasurement of loss allowance

ECL allowance balance as at 31 March 2023

Stage 1

2,363,139,989

305.252.733
(650.847,342)
(280.333.,439)

Stage 2
841,524,574

(227.982.508)
733,912,019
(195,939.914)

Stage 3
532,551.469

(77.270.225)
(83.064.676)
476,273,353

Total
3.737.216.031

(213,684,737) (129,572,711) (193.726.,965) (536.984.413)
35,329,389 22,163,570 12,596,816 70,089,776
- - 49,227,956 49,227,956
(438,173,179)  (210,517.464) (117,362,989) (766.053,632)
1.120,683.414 833,587,566 599,224,738 2,553,495.717
Stage 1 Stage 2 Stage 3 Total
29.933.070 43,176,219 106,361,045 179.470.334
23,420,969 (9,354,026) (14.066,942) -
(5.551,332) 25,352,453 (19.801,121) -
(676,146) (4.545.000) 5,221,147 -
(7.725,130) (11,721,296) (26.421,003) (45.867.429)
17.934,861 2,455,051 5,989,838 26,379,750
(52.520) (422,257) (16.382.464) (16,857,242)
(33.025,682) (31.686,235) 14,506,719 (50.205.199)
24,258,088 13,254,909 55.407.218 92,920,215
Stage 1 Stage 2 Stage 3 Total
49.803.710 37,453,629 85.882.316 173,139,655
22,607,830 (10,146.789) (12,461,041) =
(13.819.851) 27,215,339 (13,395.488) -
(5,952.496) (8.720,673) 14.673.169 -
(4,537.302) (5.766.876) (31.241.526) (41.545.705)
943,649 1,147,977 2,235,907 4,327,532
- - 7.938.784 7.938.784
(19.112.471) 1.993.613 52,728,925 35.610,068
29,933,070 43,176,219 106,361,045 179,470,334

The contractual amount outstanding on financial assets that has been written off by the Company during the year ended 31 March 2024

and that were still subject to enforcement activity was Rs 49,530,354,

The decrease in ECL of the portfolio was driven by improvement in economic conditions during the year leading to higher overall collections.
The Stage 3 provision includes management overlay of Rs 23,754,455,

Sensitivity Analysis of Accumulated Impairment for Lease Rental Receivables as at 31st March

Changed Criteria

PgGbability of Default (PD

T Pomta Mt s WA

Loss @verDefdult ?fﬁbi},v
Q

Changed
Factor

Increase by 1%
Increase by 1%

Yo Rawn EOF

2024
Sensitivity effect
on Impairment
Allowance
Increase

3.899.660
2,715477

1 994 N0

2023

Sensitivity effect
on Impairment

Allowance
Increase



Mahindra Ideal Finance Limited

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
Year ended 31 March 2024

17.

17.4

18.

18.1

18.2

LEASE RENTAL RECEIVABLES (Contd...)

Rental Receivable on Lease Within One

Year Ito5 Years Over 5 Years Total
LKR LKR LKR LKR
Gross Rentals Receivables 1.805,146,134 1.983.379,020 350,232 3,788,875.386
Less: Unearned Income 419,625,688 376,717,797 24285 796,367,769
1,385.520,447 1,606,661,223 325,947 2,992.507,618
Less : Rentals Received in Advance (35.457.655)
Net Rentals Receivable before charging Allowance for Impairment Losses 2,957.049.963
LOANS AND ADVANCES 2024 2023
LKR LKR
Loan Receivable 1.467.645.333 1,019.283.159
Less : Unearned Interest Income (235,976,588) (127,899.429)
Net Receivable 1,231.668,745 891,383,730
Less : Repayments in advance (14,352,641) (21,141.887)
Net Loan Receivables before charging Allowance for Impairment Losses 1,217.316,104 870,241,843
Less : Allowance for Impairment Losses (Note 18.2) (43,684 ,818) (71.428.991)
Total Net Loan Receivable 1,173,631,285 798,812,852
Net Receivable on Loans
As at 31st March 2024 As at 31st March 2023
Gross Loan A["Dw?nu ﬂ:r Net Loan Gross Loan 1}“0“?"“ l'(:r Net Loan
Receivables i icamicns Receivables Receivables BT Receivables
Losses Losses
Stage - 1 1.084,097,928 12,640,689 1,071.457.239 364,983,716 7.654.812 357,328,904
Stage - 2 59,655,503 1,590,175 58.065.327 202.548.,041 10.006.164 192,541,877
Stage - 3 73,562,674 29,453,955 44,108,719 302,710,086 53,768,015 248,942 071
1,217,316,104 43.684.818 1,173.631.285 870,241,843 71.428.991 798,812,852
Allowance for Impairment Losses "LKR.
(a) Allowance for Impairment with stage wise
Collective Individual
X Total
Stage -1 Stage -2 Stage -3 Stage -3
Balance as at 01 April 2023 7.654.812 10,006,164 44,746,543 9,021,472 71.428.991
Charges/(Reversals) for the year 4,985,876 (8,415,989) (16,784,853) (7.529.207) (27.744.173)
Amount written off - - - -
Balance as at 31 March 2024 12,640,689 1,590,175 27,961,689 1,492 265 43,684 818
2024 2023
(b) Movement in allowance for impairment LKR LKR
Asat 01 April 71,428,991 67.414,.250
Charges/(reversals) for the year (27,744,173) 4,014,742
Amounts written off - -
As at 31 March 43,684.818 71,428,991
Individual impairment 1,492,265 9,021,472
Collective impairment 42,192,553 62,407,519
Total 43,684,818 71,428,991

(¢) Movements in Individual and Collective impairment allowance for Loans & Advances during the year.

AT




Mabhindra Ideal Finance Limited

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
Year ended 31 March 2024

18.2

18.3

LOANS AND ADVANCES (Contd...)

Allowance for Impairment Losses (Contd...)

Individual Impairment

As at 1 April
Charges/(reversals) for the year
Amounts written off

As at 31 March

Collective Impairment

As at 1 April
Charges/(reversals) for the year
Amounts written off

As at 31 March

Total

Credit Exposure and ECL Stage wise movement

An analysis of changes in the gross carrying amount and the corresponding ECLs of Loan Receivables is as follows :

Gross exposure reconciliation

As at 31st March 2024

Particulars
Gross carrying amount balance as at 1 April 2023

Changes due to loans recognized in the opening balance that have:

- Transfers to Stage 1

- Transfers to Stage 2

- Transfers to Stage 3

- Loans that have been derecognized during the period
New loans originated during the year

Write-offs

Remeasurement of net exposure

Gross carrying amount balance as at 31 March 2024

As at 31st March 2023

Particulars
Gross carrying amount balance as at 1 April 2022

Changes due to loans recognized in the opening balance that have:

- Transfers to Stage 1

- Transfers to Stage 2

- Transfers to Stage 3

- Loans that have been derecognized during the period
New loans originated during the year

Write-offs

Remeasurement of net exposure

Gross carrying amount balance as at 31 March 2023

Reconciliation of ECL balance

As at 31st March 2024

Particulars
ECL allowance balance as at 1 April 2023

Changes due to loans recognized in the opening balance that have:

- Transfers to Stage 1
- Transfers to Stage 2
- Transfers to Stage 3
- Loans that have been derecognized during the period

New loans originated during the vear
/Tite-
Writeofs T & YOI

2024 2023
LKR LKR
9,021,473 1,976,093
(7.529.207) 7,045,380
1,492,266 9,021,473
2024 2023
LKR LKR
62.407.519 65,438,157
(20.214.966) (3.030,638)
42,192,553 62,407,519
43,684,819 71,428,992
Stage 1 Stage 2 Stage 3 Total
364,983,716 202,548,041 302,710,086 870,241,843
96,712,040 (70.066,030) (26,646.011) -
(9.897.875) 35,770,649 (25.872,774) =
(12,138,897) (11,097,387) 23,236,284 E
(273,511,729) (84,644.502) (120,373.419) (478.529,650)
987,827,545 13,361,561 - 1,001,189.106
- (4.294.986) (53.877,770) (58,172,756)
(69.876,872) (21.921,844) (25,613,722) (117.412,438)
1,084,097,928 59,655,503 73,562,674 1.217.316.104
Stage 1 Stage 2 Stage 3 Total
1,058,746,170 210.345.614 204,945,266 1,474,037.050
69,073,810 (42,431,345) (26,642.465) -
(149,180.252) 173,255,751 (24.075,499) -
(223,213.603) (51,214.980) 274,428,583 -
(345.967.767) (67.080.485) (93,967,075) (507.015,327)
160,782,531 43,234,528 9,497,349 213,514,408
- - 18,275,514 18,275,514
(205.257,173) (63.561,042) (59,751,587) (328,569,802)
364.983,716 202,548,041 302,710,086 870,241,843
Stage 1 Stage 2 Stage 3 Total
7.654.812 10,006,164 53,768,015 71,428,991
8,194,284 (3.461.362) (4,732,922) -
(329.741) 4925319 (4.595,578) -
(404,399) (548.,227) 052,626 -
(4,608.040) (4.181,560) (21,380,985) (30,170.585)
11,241,350 356,165 - 11,597.515
- (212.178) (9,569.885) (9.782.064)



Mahindra Ideal Finance Limited

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

Year ended 31 March 2024

18.3

18.4

18.5

19.

20.

21.

LOANS AND ADVANCES (Contd...)

Credit Exposure and ECL Stage wise movement (Contd...)

As at 31st March 2023

Particulars

ECL allowance balance as at 1 April 2022

Changes due to loans recognized in the opening balance that have:
- Transfers to Stage 1

- Transfers to Stage 2

- Transfers to Stage 3

- Loans that have been derecognized during the period
New loans originated during the year

Write-offs

Net remeasurement of loss allowance

ECL allowance balance as at 31 March 2023

Stage 1 Stage 2 Stage 3 Total
26,610,604 8,022,622 32.781.024 67.414.250
5.879.806 (1,618.340) (4.261.466) 8
(3,729,225) 7.580.105 (3.850.879) -
(5.579.920) (1.953.349) 7,533.269 -
(8.418.161) (2.558,463) (15.030.047) (26.006.670)
851,985 2,135,848 1.686.940 4,674,772
- - 2,923,171 2,923,171
(7.960,276) (1,602,259) 31,986.004 22,423,469
7.654.812.23 10.006.164.13 53.768.015.01 71.428.991

The contractual amount outstanding on financial assets that has been written off by the Company during the year ended 31 March 2024 and that

were still subject to enforcement activity was Rs 6,161,538,

The decrease in ECL of the portfolio was driven by improvement in economic conditions during the vear leading to higher overall collections.

The Stage 3 provision includes management overlay of Rs 4.725,652.

Sensitivity Analysis of Accumulated Impairment for Loan Receivable as at 31st March

Changed Criteria

Loss Given Default (LGD)
Probability of Default (PD)
Economic Factor Adjustment (EFA)

Receivable on Loans and Advances

Gross Receivables
Less: Unearned Income

Less : Rentals Received in Advance

Net Receivable before charging Allowance for Impairment Losses

OTHER FINANCIAL ASSETS

Refundable Deposit
Sundry Debtors
Other Receivable

OTHER NON FINANCIAL ASSETS

Advances and Prepayment
Other Receivable

FINANCIAL INVESTMENT- MEASURED AT FAIR VALUE THROUGH OTHER COMPREHENSIVE INCOME

Equities-Unquoted

Credit Informatig] v S Lanka
& YO
B 20U

Changed Factor

2024

on Impairment

2023

Sensitivity effect Sensitivity effect
on Impairment

Allowance Allowance
Increase Increase
Increase by 1% 1.459.373 2.642,881
Increase by 1% 823.696 843,450
Increase by 5% 471,413 532,662
w"‘l:,:;?ne 1to5 Years Over 5 Years Total
LKR LKR LKR LKR
827,958,394 632,088,411 4.836,052 1.464 882 856
150,850,585 81.996.760 366.766 233,214,112
677.107,808 550.091.650 4.469.286 1.231,668.745
(14,352,641)
1.217.316,104
2024 2023
LKR LKR
18,353,600 15,181,797
9.107.107 7.120,075
2.034.819 2.039.019
29,495,526 24,340,891
2024 2023
LKR LKR
188,215,932 58,781,143
280,420 -
188,496,352 58,781,143
2024 ‘ 5 2023 No. of
LKR No. of pliares LKR Shares
457.700 100 457,700 100
457,700 100 457,700 100




Mahindra Ideal Finance Limited

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

Year ended 31 March 2024

22.

22.1

22.2

22.3

PROPERTY, PLANT & EQUIPMENT

Gross Carrying Amounts

At Cost

Freehold Assets
Furniture & Fittings
Office Equipment
Computer Equipment
Motor Vehicles

Assets on Leases
Right of Use Assets

Total Value of Depreciable Assets

Depreciation

At Cost

Freehold Assets
Furniture & Fittings
Office Equipment
Computer Equipment
Motor Vehicles

Assets On Leases
Motor Vehicles
Right of Use Assets
Total Depreciation

Net Book Values
At Cost

Furniture & Fittings
Office Equipment
Computer Equipment
Motor Vehicles

Assets on Leases
Motor Vehicles
Right of Use Assets

Balance Additions Disposals Balance
As at As at
31.03.2023 31.03.2024
LKR LKR LKR LKR
205,341,810 43,044,101 - 248,385,911
119,319,009 33,942,191 - 153,261,199
42,516,968 11,780,242 - 54297211
49,389,445 - 49,389,445
416,567,232 88,766,534 - 505,333,766
359,437,947 85,662,333 445,100,281
776,005,179 174,428,867 - 950,434,046
Balance Charge for Disposals Balance
As at the year As at
31.03.2023 31.03.2024
LKR LKR LKR LKR
88,457,171 34,918,792 123,375,963
51,040,552 21,641,724 72,682,277
23,103,375 6,290,511 29,393,886
17,863,464 1.796.488 19,659,953
180,464,564 64,647,516 - 245,112,079
125,183,156 45,778,169 170,961,325
305,647,720 110,425,685 - 416,073,405
2024 2023
LKR LKR
125,009,948 116,884,638
80,578,923 68,278,456
24,903,325 19,413,594
29,729,492 31,525,981
260,221,687 236,102,668
274,138,955 234,254,791

Total Carrying Amount of Property, Plant & Equipment

A ,‘s ‘
cnarfered

534,360,642

470,357,459




Mahindra Ideal Finance Limited

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
Year ended 31 March 2024

22, PROPERTY, PLANT & EQUIPMENT (Contd...)

22.4  Fully Depreciated Property, Plant and Equipment

The initial cost of fully-depreciated property, plant and equipment as at 31 March 2024,

reporting date is as follows:

Furniture & Fittings
Office Equipment
Computer Equipment
Motor Vehicles
Computer Equipment

23. INTANGIBLE ASSETS

Computer System Software
Cost:

Opening Balance

Addition

Disposal

Closing Balance

Less: Amortization

Opening Balance

Amortization Charge for the Period
Closing Balance

Net Book Value as at 31 March

24. INTEREST BEARING BORROWINGS

Bank Over Draft
Bank Borrowings
Securitization Borrowings

which are still in use as at the

2024 2023
LKR LKR
56,943,791 35,607,005
32,360,152 19,829,301
17.968,149 12,885,109
3,257,000 3,257,000
40,524,609 39,350,000
151,053,700 110,928,414
2024 2023
LKR LKR
68,674,106 66,490,036
30,114,396 2,184,070
08,788,502 68,674,106
50,626,970 47,293,330
5,067,304 3,333,640
55,694,274 50,626,970
43,094,228 18,047,136
2024 2023
LKR LKR
902,296,255 71,476,867
2,324,856,046  1,437.647,334
616,519,290 480,833,580
3,843,671,591  1,989,957,781




Mahindra Ideal Finance Limited

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

Year ended 31 March 2024

24, INTEREST BEARING BORROWINGS (Contd...)

24.1 Bank Borrowings

Gross liability
Less: Finance Charge Allocated to Future Period
Net Liability

Repayable Within one year

Gross Liability
Less: Finance Charge Allocated to Future Period
Net Liability

Repayable After one year (1 to 5 Year)

Gross Liability

Less: Finance Charge Allocated to Future Period
Net Liability

Total Net Liability

24.2 Securitization Borrowings

Gross liability
Less: Finance Charge Allocated to Future Period
Net Liability

Repayable Within one year

Gross Liability
Less: Finance Charge Allocated to Future Period
Net Liability

Repayable After one year (1 to 5 Year)

Gross Liability

Less: Finance Charge Allocated to Future Period
Net Liability

Total Net Liability

24.2.1 Institution Wise Loan Facilities

Short Term

HSBC

Deutsche Bank

Hatton National Bank PLC
Commercial Bank of Ceylon PLC
Seylan Bank PLC

Long Term

Bank of Ceylon

Hatton National Bank PLC
M Power Capital Limited
National

2024
LKR

2.399,585.802
(74.729.756)

2023
LKR

1,423.450.,494
(164,303,160)

2.324,856.046

1,259.147,334

2.341,551.742
(71,789.314)

1.187.267.248
(124,937.579)

2.269,762,428 1.062.329.669

58.034.060 236.183.245

(2.940.442) (39.365.580)

55.093.618 196.817.665

2.324 856,046 1,259.147,334

2024 2023
LKR LKR

789,789.817 778.883.800

(173.270,527) (119.550,220)

616.519.290 659.333.580

154,083,064 649.640.587
(29.963.774) (90.307.007)

124,119,290 559,333,580

635.706.754 129.243.213
(143.306,754) (29.243,213)

492,400,000 100,000,000

616.519.290 659,333,580

As at g
As at 31.03.2024 31.03.2023 Security
LKR. LKR.

1.925,642,546

762,945,205

788.537.189 -

200,153,233 75.423.781
81.201.759
32.404.075

3,027,938,802 838.368.986

107,373,499 260.204.847

91.840.000 160,573,500

- 198.205.286

- §9.430.409

616.519.290 371.697.886

815,732,789

1,080,111,928

Mortgage over Lease and Gold Loan Receiv
Mortgage over Lease and Gold Loan Receiv
Mortgage over Gold Loan Receivables

Lien over Treasury Bills

Mortgage over Lease and Gold Loan Receiv

Mortgage over Lease Receivables

Mortgage over Loan Receivables

Mortgage over Gold Loan receivables
Mortgage over Lease Receivables

Mortgage over Lease and Gold Loan Receiv



Mahindra Ideal Finance Limited

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
Year ended 31 March 2024

25 DUE TO CUSTOMERS 2024 2023
LKR LKR
Fixed Deposits accepted from public 5,204,224,178  3,487.076.917

5,204.224,178  3,487,076,917

26. OTHER FINANCIAL LIABILITIES 2024 2023
LKR LKR
Trade Payable 44,585,480 2,924,680
Accrued Expense 85,192,918 45,622,351
Obligation to Make the Lease Payment (Note 26.1) 303,757,226 251,265,783
Sundry Creditors 113,624,546 79,467,937

547,160,170 379,280,751

26.1  Obligation to Make the Lease Payment 2024 2023
LKR LKR
Asat 1 April 251,265,783 205,263,558
Additions and improvements during the vear 78.341,834 109,009,988
Disposals during the year - (36,795,307)
Accretion of interest during the year 37,872,226 33,835,137
Payments to lease creditors (63,722.616) (60,047.593)
As at 31 March 303,757,226 251,265,783
27 OTHER NON FINANCIAL LIABILITIES 2024 2023
LKR LKR
WHT Payable 4,657,803 3,140,234
Stamp Duty Payable 8,351,337 561,350
VAT Payable 17,374,405 276,844
Dividend Payable 961,829 961,829
Other Liabilities 36,239,905 32,453,647
67,585,279 37,393,904
28. RETIREMENT BENEFIT LIABILITY 2024 2023
LKR LKR

28.1  Defined Benefit Liability

Defined Benefit Liability 49,036,778 30,896,045

49,036,778 30,896,045

28.2  Changes in the Defined benefit obligation are as follows

Opening Liability 30,896,045 26,338,562
Net Benefit expense 20,775,483 7.319,858
Benefit paid (2,634.750) (2,762,375)
Closing Liability 49,036,778 30,896,045

28.3  Net Benefit expense

Interest Cost 6,055,624 3,979,756
Current Service Cost 6,617,946 5,471,057
Gain on Plan Ammendment - -

Actuarial Gain on obligations 8,101,913 (2,130,956)

20,775,483 7,319,857




Mahindra Ideal Finance Limited

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
Year ended 31 March 2024

28.

RETIREMENT BENEFIT LIABILITY (Contd...)

The principal financial assumptions used are as follows

Messrs. Piyal S Goonetilleke Actuaries, carried out an actuarial valuation of the defined benefit plan gratuity on 31 March 2024, Appropriate
and compatible assumptions were used in determining the cost of retirement benefits. The principal assumptions used are as follows:

2024 2023
Discount Rate* 12.30% 19.60%
Future Salary Increment Rate 12.00% 15.00%
Retirement age 60 Years 60 Years
The weighted average duration of the defined benefit obligation 8.2 Years 6 Years

Mortality - GA 1983 Mortality Table issued by the Institute of Actuaries London

*Discount rate used for the actuarial valuation changed during the year due to changes in market interest rates. Future salary increment rate
too was revised to fall in line with the decrease in inflation rates.

Sensitivity Analysis
"+/- 1% change on Discount Rate and Salary Increase- present value of defined benefit obligation as at 31 March 2024.

Present Value of Defined Benefit Obligation

(PVDBO)
31-Mar-24 31-Mar-24 31-Mar-24
Discount Rate 11.30% 12.30% 13.30%
Basic Salary Scale 12.0% 12.0% 12.0%
Census at 31-Mar-24 31-Mar-24 31-Mar-24
Total PYDBO 52,757,318 49,036,778 45,932,740

Present Value of Defined Benefit Obligation

(PVDBO)
31-Mar-24 31-Mar-24 31-Mar-24
Discount Rate 12.30% 12.30% 12.30%
Basic Salary Scale 11.0% 12.0% 13.0%
Census at 31-Mar-24 31-Mar-24 31-Mar-24
Total PYDBO 45,935,992 49,036,778 52,681,635

Sensitivity Analysis
“+/- 1% change on Discount Rate and Salary Increase- present value of defined benefit obligation as at 31 March 2023,

Present Value of Defined Benefit Obligation

(PYDBO)
31-Mar-23 31-Mar-23 31-Mar-23
Discount Rate 18.60% 19.60% 20.60%
Basic Salary Scale 15.0% 15.0% 15.0%
Census at 31-Mar-23 31-Mar-23 31-Mar-23
Total PVDBO 32,363.756 30.896.045 29.625.022

Present Value of Defined Benefit Obligation

(PVDBO)
31-Mar-23 31-Mar-23 31-Mar-23
Discount Rate 19.60% 19.60% 19.60%
Basic Salary Scale 14.0% 15.0% 16.0%
Census at 31-Mar-23 31-Mar-23 31-Mar-23
Total PYDBO 29,580,915 30,896,045 32,394,685

Iatuntv pro undiscounted cash flows of defined benefit obligation
1thm | year ° 4/

3em een | au;l’éﬂje ars

2024
17,911,586
26,264,322



Mahindra Ideal Finance Limited

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

Year ended 31 March 2024

29. DEFERRED TAX (ASSET)/ LIABILITY
As at 31st March 2024

Accelerated Depreciation for Tax Purposes

Impairment of

Defined Benefit

Property, Intangible  Right of Use  Lease Rentals Loans and Plan Others T
PI“E“ o Assets Assets Receivables Obligation
Equipment
Balance as at Ist April 2023 18,075,244 1,817,178 (5,103,297) 253,661 (33,422.405) (9,268.814) - 2
Profit or loss (Note no. 11.1)
Due to change in temporary differences 1,911,192 699 671 (3,782,184) (253,661) 10,398,644 (3.011,646)
Other comprehensive income
Due to change in temporary differences - - - - - (2,430,574 - (
Balance as at 31st March 2024 19,986,436 2,516,849 (8.885.481) - (23.023,761) (12,280.460) - (2
As at 31st March 2023
e —
A:celerated Depreciation for Tax Purposes Impairientof Defined Benefit
lel’e”}'(i Intangible Right of Use  Lease Rentals Loans and Plan Others T
af“ s Assets Assets Receivables Obligation
Equipment
Balance as at Ist April 2022 11,183,186 1,791,923 (12,217.434) 5,015,292 (23,885,966) (6,321,255) 750,388 2
Profit or loss (Note no. 11.1)
Due to rate change 2,795,796 447981 (3,054,359) 1,253,823 (5,971,491) (1,580,314) (750.388) (
Due to change in temporary differences 4,096,261 (422,727) 10,168,495 (6,015,453) (3,564,947) (2,006,531)
Other comprehensive income
Due to rate change - - - - - (8,780) -
Due to change in temporary differences - - - - - 648,066 -
Balance as at 31st March 2023 18,075,244 1,817,178 (5,103,297) 253,661 (33,422,405) (9,268.814) - (2
30, STATED CAPITAL
Issued and Fully Paid-Ordinary Shares No. of Shares
Balance as of 1 April 2022 145,639,098 1,90
Issued during the Period -
Balance as of 31 March 2023 145,639,098 1,9
Balance as of 1 April 2023 145,639,098 1.9(
Issued during the Period -
Balance as of 31 March 2024 145,639,098 1,90
31. RESERVES 2024 2
LKR L
Fund
o Bahl¥phe, | April 48,178 464 4
c gﬁdﬂ%@ring Ni=yed 4,881,019
March 53,059,484 4

é“‘ I" By
U acddtiieditiaee fsat3
e,

57

/e fund is maintained in accordance with Direction No. 1 of 2003 issued by the Central Bank of Sri Lanka under the Finance Business Act No. 42 of 2011,
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32.

33.

4’0 uuma{éw

CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS FOR THE PURPOSE OF CASH FLOW

Components of cash and cash Equivalents

Favorable Cash & Cash Equivalents Balance
Cash and Bank Balance (Note 13)
Investment in Mutual Fund
Investment in Government Securities (Note 14)

Investment in FD with short Term Maturities (Note 15)

Investment in Reverse Repurchase Agreements

Un-Favorable Cash & Cash Equivalents Balance
Bank Over Draft (Note 24)

Total Cash and Cash Equivalents for the Purpose of Cash Flow Statement

STATEMENT

ANALYSIS OF FINANCIAL ASSETS & LIABILITIES BY MEASURMENT BASIS

As at 31 March 2024

Financial Assets

Cash & Bank Balances

Investment in Government Securities

Investment in Unit Trust Funds

Placements with Other Banks & Financial Institutions
Lease Rental Receivables

Loans and Advances

Gold Advances

Financial Investments-measured at Fair Value through OCI
Other Financial Assets

Total Financial Assets

Financial Liabilities
Interest Bearing Borrowings
Due to the Customers

Other Financial Liabilities
Total Financial Liabilities

As at 31 March 2023

Financial Assets

Cash & Bank Balances

Investment in Government Securities

Placements with Other Banks & Financial Institutions
Lease Rental Receivables

Loans and Advances

Gold Advances

Financial Investments-measured at Fair Value through OCI
Other Financial Assets

Total Financial Assets

ma"flcﬁl le“

e e

ercst Bearm
mu—
~.aecountal

Financial
Assets at Fair

Financial Assets
at Fair Value

2024 2023
LKR LKR
110,767,720 163,583,696
1,001,278,217
- 157,808,254
100,000,000 -
1.002,994,685
2,215,040,622 323,391,950
902,296,255 71,476,867
902,296,255 71,476,867
1,312,744,367 251,915,083

Vabse Bivaine Other . l-‘inan.cin.l ./\.sscts Total
Stwtemeni Comprehensive  and Lla-btlmcs at
Income Amortized Cost
LKR LKR LKR LKR
- - 110,767,720 110,767,720
- - 1.819,024,328 1,819,024,328
1,001,278.217 - - 1,001,278,217
- - 355,848,060 355,848,060
- - 2,864,129,749 2,864,129,749
- - 1,173,631.285 1,173,631,285
- - 4.505,162,573 4,505,162,573
- 457,700 - 457,700
- - 29,495,526 29,495,526
1,001,278.217 457,700 10,858,059.241 11,859,795,158

3,843,671.591
5,204,224.178
547,160,170

3,843,671,591
5.204.224,178
547.160,170

9,595,055,940

9,595.055,940

Financial
Assets at Fair

Financial Assets
at Fair Value

v Other Financial Assets Total
alue Income . e e
Statement Comprehensive and Lm.blllttes at
Income Amortized Cost
LKR LKR LKR LKR
- - 165,583,696 165,583,696
- - 458,137,517 458,137,517
- - 445,268,915 445,268,915
- - 2,374,025,383 2,374,025,383
- - 798,812,852 798,812,852
- - 3,950,688.495 3,950,688.,495
- 457,700 - 457,700
- - 24,340,891 24,340,891
- 457,700 8.216,857,749 8.217.315,449

1,989,957,781
3,487,076.917

Ama A0n s

1,989,957,781
3.487.076,917

Aan aan A



Mabhindra Ideal Finance Limited

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
Year ended 31 March 2024

34.

34.1

34.2

a)

b)

34.3

FAIR VALUE OF FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS
Determination of Fair Value and Fair Value Hierarchy

The company use the following hierarchy for determining and disclosing the fair value of financial instruments by valuation
technique.

Level | : Quoted prices in active markets for identical assets and liabilities.

Level 2: Other technique for which all inputs which have a significant effect on the recorded fair value are observable,
either directly or indirectly.

Level 3 : Techniques which use inputs that have a significant effect on the recorded fair value that are not based on
observable market data.

Financial Instruments regularly measured using Fair Value - recurring items

Financial Investments - Measured at Fair Value through Profit/ Loss

Fair Value Carrying Fair Value
Investment in Unit Trust Funds Heirarchy Amount
LKR LKR
As at 31 March 2024 Level 1 1,000,000,000 1,001,278,217
As at 31 March 2023 Level 1 - -

The Investment in Unit Trust Funds are measured at market value as on 31 March 2024 and hence are classified as Level |
heirarchy.

Financial Investments - Measured at Fair Value through other comprehensive income

Fair Value Carrying Fair Value
Investment in Unquoted Equity instruments Heirarchy Amount
LKR LKR
As at 31 March 2024 Level 3 457,000 457,000
As at 31 March 2023 Level 3 457,000 457,000

Equity instruments at fair value through OCI primarily consist of unquoted equity securities. Unquoted equity securities are
carried at cost since it is the most reasonable value available to represent the price of such securities and hence classified as
Level 3 hirerachy.

Fair Value of the Financial Instrument Carried at Amortized Cost
Set out below is a comparison, by class, of the carrying amounts and fair values of the Company's financial instruments that

are not carried at fair value in the financial Statements. This table does not include the fair values of non financial assets
and liabilities.

As at 31 March 2024 Level Carrying Fair Value
Amount
LKR LKR

Financial Assets
Lease Rental Receivables Level 02 2.864,129.749 2,852,389,258
Level 02 1,173,631,285 1.176.194,388

LYY A NAT ATIE AN r A NS4S NAT



Mahindra Ideal Finance Limited

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
Year ended 31 March 2024

34.  FAIR VALUE OF FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (Contd...)

34.3 Fair Value of the Financial Instrument Carried at Amortized Cost

3s:

As at 31 March 2023 Level Carrying Fair Value

Amount

LKR LKR

Financial Assets
Lease Rental Receivables Level 02 2,374,025,383 2,095,629,218
Loans and Advances Level 02 798,812,852 763,441,751
Financial Liabilities
Interest Bearing Borrowings Level 02 1,918,480,914 1,959,936,050

For the following list of Financial Instrument whose carrying amount is a reasonable approximation of fair value because,

for example. they are short-term in nature or reprice to current market rates frequently.

Assets

Cash and Bank Balances

Investment in Government Securities
Investment in Unit Trust Funds
Placements with Banks and Other Financial Institutions
Gold Advances

Other Financial Assets

Financial Liabilities

Bank Overdraft

Due to the Customers

Other Financial Liabilities

CURRENT AND NON CURRENT ANALYSIS OF ASSETS & LIABILITIES

Table below shows an analysis of assets and liabilities analyzed according to when they are expected to be recovered or

settled.

As at 31 March 2024 Within After Total
12-Months 12-Months

LKR LKR LKR
ASSETS
Cash and Bank Balances 110,767,720 - 110,767,720
Investment in Government Securities 1,819,024,328 - 1,819,024,328
Financial Investments-Measured at Fair Value Through PL 1,001,278,217 - 1,001,278,217
Placements with Banks and Other Financial Institutions 355,848,060 - 355,848,060

Gold Advances
Lease Rentals Receivable and Loans and Advances

4,505,162,573
1,858,573,074

2,179,187.959

4,505,162,573
4,037,761,033

Other Financial Assets 17,234,451 12,261,076 29,495,526
Other Non Financial Assets 178,055,010 10,441,342 188,496,352
Financial Investments-Measured at FVOCI - 457,700 457,700
Property, Plant and Equipment = 534,360,642 534,360,642
[ntangible Assets - 43,094,228 43,094,228
Deferred Tax Assets 24,116,990 24,116,990

0,845,943,432

2.803,919,938

12,649.863,370
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CURRENT AND NON CURRENT ANALYSIS OF ASSETS & LIABILITIES (Contd...)

LIABILITIES

Interest Bearing Borrowings
Due to the Customers

Other Financial Liabilities
Other Non Financial Liabilities
Current Tax Liabilities
Retirement Benefit Liability
Total Liabilities

Net Assets

As at 31 March 2023

ASSETS

Cash and Bank Balances

Investment in Government Securities

Placements with Banks and Other Financial Institutions
Gold Advances

Lease Rental Receivables and Loans and Advances
Other Financial Assets

Other Non Financial Assets

Financial Investments-Measured at Fair Value through OCI
Inventories

Property, Plant and Equipment

Intangible Assets

Deferred Tax Assets

Total Assets

LIABILITIES

Interest Bearing Borrowings
Due to the Customers

Other Financial Liabilities
Other Non Financial Liabilities
Current Tax Liabilities
Retirement Benefit Liability
Total Liabilities

Net Assets

Within
12-Months
LKR

3.296,177.973
4,935,690,952
271,747,123
67,585,280
5,942,625

After
12-Months
LKR

547,493,618

268,533,225
275,209,591

49,036,778

Total

LKR

3,843,671,591
5,204,224,177
546,956,714
67,585,280
5,942,625
49,036,778

8,577,143,952

1,140,273.212

9,717.417,164

1,268,799.480 1.663,646,726 2,932.,446,206
Within After
Total
12-Months 12-Months
LKR LKR LKR
165,583,696 - 165,583,696
458,137,517 - 458,137,517
445,268,915 - 445,268,915

3,950,688,495
1,481,552,723
15,612,072
44,748,960

1,691,285,512
8,728,819
14,032,183
457,700
470,357,459
18,047,136
27,648,433

3.950,688,495
3.172,838,234
24,340,892
58,781,143
457,700
470,357,459
18,047,136
27,648,433

6,561,592,378

2,230,557,242

8,792,149,620

1,693,140.,116 296,817,665 1,989,957,781
3,257,263,796 229,813,120 3.487.076.917
147,745,201 231,535,550 379,280,751
37,393,905 37,393,905
32,921,837 32,921,837

- 30,896,045 30,896,045
5.168,464.855 789,062,380 5,957,527,235

1,393,127,523

1,441,494,862

2,834,622,384
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36.

36.1

36.2

37.

38.

38.1

38.1.1

38.1.2

COMMITMENT AND CONTINGENCIES

There were no significant capital commitment and contingencies as of the reporting date.

Litigation Against Company
The company does not have contingent liabilities in respect of legal claims arising in the ordinary course of business.

Assets Pledged
The following assets have been pledged as security for liabilitics.

Nature of Assets Nature of Liability Carrying Amount Pledged Included Under
2024 2023
LKR. LKR.
Lease Rentals Receivable * Bank Loans and Overdrafts 1.321.738.844 2.289.046,071  Lease Rentals
Receivable
Loan Receivable* Bank Loans and Overdrafis 343.760.366 423,411,966 Loan Receivable
Gold Advances* Bank Loans and Overdrafts 4.253.763.231 2.462.704.804 Loan Receivable

5,919.262.441 5.175.162.841

* The receivables and cash flows that have been included in securitization transactions are only available for payment of the debt and
other obligations issued or arising in the securitization transactions. However, the Company hold the right to the excess cash flows not
needed to pay the debt and other obligations issued or arising in each of the securitization transactions.

EVENT OCCURRING AFTER THE REPORTING DATE

Subsequent to the reporting date, no circumstances have arisen which would require adjustment or disclosure in financial statement.

RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS

The company carries out transactions in the ordinary course of business with the parties who are defined as "Related Parties" in LKAS-
24-Related Party Disclosures.

Terms and Conditions
All such transactions entered into with the related parties are on an arms' length basis and are comparable with what is applied to the
transactions with unrelated customers with similar credit standing.

Details of related party transactions which the company had during the year are as follows:

Transactions with Key Managerial Personnel (KMPs)

The Company has identified and disclosed personnel those having authority and responsibility for planning, directing and controlling
the activities of the company as "Key Management Personnel” in accordance with LKAS 24-"Related Party Disclosures'. Accordingly,
Board of Directors, Chief Executive Officer, Members of Corporate Management team have been identified as "Key Management
Personnel'.

Compensation to KMP 2024 2023
LKR LKR
Short Term Employment Benefits 43.638.044 36,992,968

Post Employment Benefits - -
43,638.044 36.992.968

In addition to the above, the Company has also paid non cash benefits such as vehicles and fuel to key management personnel in line
with the approved employment benefits of the Company.

Transaction with KMP and their Close Family Members

Aggregate value of transactions with KMP and their CFM are disclosed below. These transactions are carried out at Arm's length
prices.

2024 2023

LKR LKR
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38.

38.2

39.

39.1

RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS (Contd...)

Transaction, arrangements and agreements involving with Entities which are controlled, and/or jointly controlled by the

KMP's and their CFMs or shareholders

Nature of Amount of the Outstanding Qutstanding
Relationship Transactions Receivable/ Receivable/
during the vear (Payable) (Payable)
Balance as at Balance as at
3/31/2024 3/31/2023
LKR LKR LKR
Ideal Motors (Pvt) Ltd. Affiliate Company
Vehicle Repair Services 227.966 - -
Trade Advance for City Pickups 271,741,000
Other Purchases & Services 22.619.078 - -
Ideal Automobile (Pvt) Ltd Affiliate Company
Fixed Deposits placed with the Company 50,000,000 236,263,657 186.263.657
Interest Expenses on Fixed Deposits 36.583.805 1,381,762 1,617,603
Ideal Premier (Pvt) Ltd Affiliate Company
Vehicle Repair Services 2,226.822 = 2
Ideal First Choice (Pvt) Ltd Affiliate Company
Vehicle Repair Services 126.023 - -
Prompt Express Private Limited Affiliate Company
Lease and Loan Receivables - 24.913.224 54,423,171
Courier Service Charges 3,327.495 607,520 632.268
Ideal Drive Private Limited Affiliate Company
Vehicle Hire Expense 4,899.564 - -
E M G Logistics Pvt Ltd Affiliate Company
Fixed Deposits placed with the Company 48.567.399 - 48.567.399
Interest Expenses on Fixed Deposits 36.583.805 - 493,685
Mahindra & Mahindra
Trade Mark Fee Ultimate Parent Company 376.000 - -
CAPITAL

The Company maintains capital in order to cover risks inherent in the business and meet the capital adequacy requirements of Central
Bank of Sri Lanka . The adequacy of the Company’s eapital is monitored based on the measures, rules and ratios adopted by Central

Bank of Sri Lanka.

Capital Management

The primary objective of Company’s capital management policy is to ensure that the Company complies with externally imposed
capital requirements and healthy capital ratios in order to support its business and to maximize sharcholders' value.

Regulatory Capital

The Company manages its capital considering the regulatory capital requirements. The Central Bank of Sri Lanka(CBSL) sets and
monitors capital requirements for licensed finance companies. Accordingly. finance companies in Sri Lanka need to maintain a
minimum total capital adequacy ratio of 12.5% and a minimum core capital adequacy ratio (Tier I) of 8.5%.The Company has always
maintained the Capital Adequacy Ratio above the minimum regulatory requirements. The company's Tier I and Tier II capital adequacy
ratios as at the end of the financial year stood at 39.02% and 40.04% respectively.

T & YOy
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40.

40.1

40.2

RISK MANAGEMENT
Introduction

Risk is inherent in the company’s activities, but is managed through a process of ongoing identification, measurement and monitoring. subject to risk limits and other controls. This
risk management is critical to the company’s continuing profitability and each individual within the company is accountable for the risk exposures relating to his or her responsibilities.

RISK MANAGEMENT

The Board of Directors has overall responsibility for the establishment and oversight of the Company’s risk management framework. The Board has delegated its authority to Integr
Management Committee (IRMC) which is responsible for developing and monitoring Company’s risk management policies. The Committee is headed by an Independent Non-]
Director and is comprised of Executive and Non-Executive Directors and Officers performing Executive functions. Meetings of IRMC are held regularly. and the Board of Director:
updated of its activities.

RISK MANAGEMENT AND REPORTING

Monitoring and controlling risks is primarily performed based on policies, limits & thresholds established by the Company. These limits reflect the business strategy and market envirc
the Company as well as the level of risk that the Company is willing to accept.

Credit Risk

Credit risk is the risk arise due to the uncertainty in counterparty’s ability to meet its obligations. The risk of loss of principal or loss of a financial reward stemming from a borrower's
repay a loan or otherwise meet a contractual obligation. The company considers a financial instrument defaulted for impairment calculations in all cases when the borrower become
past due on its contractual payments.
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40. RISK MANAGEMENT (Contd...)

40.2.1 Credit Quality of Financial Assets :

The following table sets out information about credit quality of leases and loans measured at amortized cost primarily based on days past due information. The amount represents gross «

Particulars

Gross carrying value of Lease Rental Receivables
Neither Past due nor

impaired

Past Due but not

impaired

30 days past due

31-90 days past due

Impaired (more than
90 days)
Total Gross carrying value as at reporting date

Particulars

Gross carrying value of Loans and Advances
Neither Past due nor

impaired

Past Due but not

impaired

30 days past due

31-90 days past due

Impaired (more than

{ng value as at reporting date

Chartered
Accountants
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J1st March 2024

1.543.486.709

571.069.761

584.202.430

258.291.063
2,957.049.964

J1st March 2024

926,942,183

157,155,745

59.655.503

73.562.674
1.217.316,104

31ist Mar

665,

4553,

31st Mar

251,

112,

202,

302,
870.
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40.

40.2.2

40.2.2.1

RISK MANAGEMENT (Contd...)
Analysis of Risk Concentration
Industry Analysis

The following table shows the risk concentration by industry for the components of the Statement of Financial Position.

. 7 Financial
Sector wise Break hixestnrent iy Flacamest with Lease Rental Investments-
§ Cash & Bank  Government Bank & Other g 2 Other Financial Total Fir
Down as at 31 March i _ a Receivables and Loans Measured at Fair  Gold Advances
2024 Balances Secm:ltles at Fm.anc'lal sl Elsnums Valire Shirough Assets Asse
Amortized cost Institutions oCI
LKR LKR LKR LKR LKR LKR LKR LK
Agriculture - - - 155.467.844 - - - 155,
Manufacturing = - = 82,178,113 = @ = 82,
Construction - - - 94,270,057 - - - 94,
Financial Services 110.767.720 1.819.024,328 355,848,060 26.501.994 - - - 2,312,
Trading - - - 200.260.970 - - - 200,
Hotels - - - 29214,127 - - - 29.
Services - - - - 457.700 -
Transport - - - 3.223.465.451 E - - 3.223,
Consumer - - - 226,402,478 - 4,530.164,582 29,495,526 4,786,
Total 110,767,720 1.819,024,328 355,848.060 4,037.761,034 457,700 4,530.164.582 29.495.526 10,883,
Provincial break down for lease and loan receivables within Sri Lanka as follows.
Lease Rental Loans &
Receivables Advances Gl
Province
Central 121,801,609 26,374,629 557,
North Central 354.854,923 650,417,189 121,
North Western 288.458.515 125, 715.767 187,
Northern 160.851.349 25.319.844 1,007.
abaragamuwa 182.351.360 8,248,026 188.
¥ S‘i’:mf‘h'sﬂ‘n,:.‘i 325,994,273 81,718,795 395,
= IPG\ 522,217,849 20.455.590 727,
1.000.520,084 279,066.265 1.343,
2,957.049,963 1,217.316,104 4.53().
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40.

40.2.1

40.2.2.1

RISK MANAGEMENT (Contd...)
Analysis of Risk Concentration (Contd...)

Industry Analysis (Contd...)

2 Investment in Placement with Kiascint
Rbcter wine Hytah Cash & Bank  Government Bank & Other lLease Reartal Investuanes " Other Financial Total Fin
Down as at 31 March o 2 i Receivables and Loans Measured at Fair  Gold Advances
2023 Balances Secur'mes at Fl[l.allt‘-lal T Vishue throsgh Assets Asse
Amortized cost Institutions ocl
LKR LKR LKR LKR LKR LKR LKI
Agriculture - - - 233,519,242 - - - 233,
Manufacturing - - - 45,794,715 - - - 45,
Construction - - - 145,530,881 - - - 145,
Financial Services 165.583.696 458.137.517 445,268,915 8.041.880 - - - 1,077,
Trading - - - 178,840,812 - - - 178,
Hotels - - - 15.596.463 B - - 15;
Services - 3 - - 457,700 -
Transport - - - 2.559.614.724 - - - 2,559,
Consumer - - - 236,798,844 - 3.971.326,248 24.340.891 4,232,
Total 165.583.696 458.137.517 445268915 3.423,737.560 457.700 3.971,326.248 24.340.891 8.488.
Provincial break down for lease rental receivables within Sri Lanka as follows.
Lease Rental Loans &
. Receivables Advances Gadiad
Province
Central 98.174.826 23,155,694 294,
North Central 169.735.615 83.082.655 161.
North Western 406,994,974 87.364.576 221,
Northern 202.505.319 17.499,768 931,
271,024,314 7.300,983 116.
295.852.812 97.755.262 420,
522,394,624 19.999.123 814,
586,813,233 534,083,783 1,011,
2,553,495,717 870,241,843 3,971,
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40.

40.3

40.3.1

RISK MANAGEMENT (Contd...)

Liquidity Risk & Funding Management

Liquidity risk refers to the possibility of Company not having sufficient cash to meet its payment obligations. This arises primarily due to mismatches in the maturity profile of Company’s ¢
liabilities. Adequate liquidity is critical to meet the Company’s financial commitment and to accommodate additional funding needs of the growing business volumes.

The Company’s primary objective in liquidity risk management is to ensure adequate funding for its businesses throughout market cycles.

Furthermore the Company maintains the statutory liquid assets ratio at its required level as a method to measure and control the liquidity risk.

Analysis of Financial Assets and Liabilities by Remaining Contractual Maturities

The table below summarizes the maturity profile of the undiscounted cash flows of the Company's financial assets and liabilities.

As at 31st March 2024

Financial Assets

Cash and Bank Balances

Placements with Banks and Other Financial Institutions
Investment in Government Securities

Financial Investments-Measured at Fair Value through P/L
Gold Advances

Lease Rentals Receivable

Loans and Advances

Financial Investments-Measured at Fair Value through OCI
Other Financial Assets

Total Financial Assets

Financial Liabilities
Interest Bearing Borrowings
Due to the Customers
Other Financial Liabilities
Obljgatio R

Less Than 3

On Demand 3 to 12 Months 1 to 5 years Over 5 Years Tot:
Months

LKR LKR LKR LKR LKR LKI
110,767.720 - - - - 110,
- 257.004.795 101,416,667 - - 358,
1,002.994.685 375.,000.000 490.000.000 - - 1.867
1,001,278,217 - - - - 1.001,
1.324,963.,032 3,088.083.209 118,760,029 5,025 4531
175.393.943 349,555,586 1.276.,270,563 1,983.379,020 350,232 3.784
57,749,123 137.277.620 601,107,181 649,728,263 7.598.528 1.453

- - - - 457.700
- 9,576,512 7.657.938 5.471,124 6,789.952 29
3.673.146.720 4,216.497,722 2,595,212,378 2,638.583.431 15.196.412 13.138
- 2,252,541,093 1,103,228,131 693,740,813 - 4.049
- 1.581,072,424 3.646,089,452 362.534.610 - 5.589
- 243,199,488 - - - 243
- 16,812,921 49,571,430 252,674,784 166,649,904 485
- 4,093.625,926 4.798.889.014 1.308.950.207 166,649,904 10.368
3.673,146,720 122,871,795 (2,203,676.636) 1,329,633.224 (151.453,492) 2,770
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40.

40.3

40.3.1

RISK MANAGEMENT (Contd...)

Liquidity Risk & Funding Management (Contd...)

Analysis of Financial Assets and Liabilities by Remaining Contractual Maturities (Contd....

As at 31st March 2023

Financial Assets

Cash and Bank Balances

Placements with Banks and Other Financial Institutions
Investment in Government Securities

Gold Advances

Lease Rental Receivables

Loans and Advances

Financial Investments-Measured at Fair Value through OCI
Other Financial Assets

Total Financial Assets

Financial Liabilities

Interest Bearing Borrowings

Due to the Customers

Other Financial Liabilities

Obligation to Make the Lease Payment
Total Financial Liabilities

Total Net Financial Assets/ (Liabilities)

Chartered

Accountants

On Demand RN, 3 3 to 12 Months 1 to 5 years Over 5 Years Tota
Months =

LKR LKR LKR LKR LKR LKE

165,583,696 - - - - 165.

- 24.620.114 468.991.912 493,

- 165.000.000 328.000,034 - - 493,

. 3,900.684.135 70,172,673 469.440 3,971,

220,523,520 314.350.533 916.179.827 1,790.003,965 - 3.241,

153,490,720 294,255,388 217,437,621 214,986,693 1,294,237 881,
- - - - 457.700

- 13.921.689 1.690.383 4.162.603.06 4,566,216 24,

539,597,936 4.712.831.859 2,002.472,450 2.009.622.701 6.318.153 9.270.

- 1.294.497.129 536,038,778 365.426.459 - 2,195,

- 1.786,360,256 1.783,245,376 340,034,622 - 3.909,

- 128.014,969 - - - 128,

14,040,411 39,410,018 195,662.605 173.790.305 422,

- 3,222,912,765 2,358.694,172 901,123,685 173,790,305 6,656,

539.597.936 1.489.919.094 (356,221,722) 1.108,499.016 (167.472.153) 2,614,
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40.

40.4

RISK MANAGEMENT (Contd...)

Interest Rate Risk

Interest rate risk is a key constitute of the market risk exposure of the Company due to adverse and unanticipated movements in future interest rate which arises from core business activities; gr;

credit facilities, accepting deposits and issuing debt instruments.

Due to the nature of operations of the Company, the impact of interest rate risk is mainly on the earnings of the Company rather than the market value of portfolios. Several factors give rise to int
risk: among these are term structure risk, which arises due to the mismatches in the maturities of assets and liabilities; basis risk which is the threat to income arises due to differences in the

interest rates.

Excessive movements in market interest rate could result in severe volatility to Company’s net interest income and net interest margin. Company’s exposure to interest rate risk is primarily associ:

factors such as;

Interest Rate Risk Exposure on Financial Assets & Liabilities

The table below analyses the Company's interest rate risk exposure on financial assets & liabilities. The Company's assets & liabilities are included at carrying amount and categorized by the earlic

contractual repricing or maturity dates.

Interest Bearing

As at 31st March 2024 Total Asat  31-

Less Than 3 Non Interest
200 Months 3 to 12 Month 1to5 Years Over 5 Years
Financial Assets LKR LKR LKR LKR LKR LKR
Cash and Bank Balances 110.767,720 - - - - 110,
Investment in Government Securities and Placements with Banks 2,174,872,372 1.622,707,839 552,164,533 - -
Financial Investments-Measured at Fair Value Through PL 1,001,278,217 1,001.278.217 - - -
Gold Advances 4,531,811,295 4.413.046,241 118,760,029 5.025 -
Lease Rentals Receivable 2.957,049,962 381,118,082 968.944,709 1,606.987.171 -
Loans and Advances 1.217.316,104 156,970,541 488.144.774 572,200,789 -
Financial Investments-Measured at Fair Value through OCI 457,700 :
Other Financial Assets 24.340.891 4.897.876 19,
Total Financial Assets 12,017.894.261 7,580.018.796 2,128.014.046 2.179,192,984 - 130,
Financial Liabilities
3.843.671.591 2.223.365.538 1,072.812.435 547,493,618 -
5.204,224,178 1,651.814.568 3.283.876.384 268.533.225 -
546,956,715 250,221,868 21,525,256 141,279,887 133,929,704
9,594,852,483 4,125.401,974 4,378.214,075 957,306,730 133,929,704
2,423.041,778 3.454.616.822 (2.250,200,029) 1.221,886,255 (133,929.704) 130,
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40.

40.4

RISK MANAGEMENT (Contd...)

Interest Rate Risk (Contd...)

As at 31st March 2023

Financial Assets

Cash and Bank Balances

Investment in Government Securities and Placements with Banks
Gold Advances

Lease Rental Receivables

Loans and Advances

Financial Investments-Measured at Fair Value through OCI

Other Financial Assets

Total Financial Assets

Financial Liabilities
Interest Bearing Borrowings
Due to the Customers

Other Financial Liabilities
Total Financial Liabilities

Interest Sensitivity Gap

Total As at

Interest Bearing

Less Than 3 Non Interest
AR Months 3 to 12 Month 1to 5 Years Over 5 Years
LKR LKR LKR LKR LKR LKF
165,583,696 - - - B 165.
903,406,432 160.572,123 742,834,309 - B
3,971,326,248 3.900.684,135 70,642,113 -
2.553,495.717 412.141.696 666,349,439 1.475.004,582
870,241,842 436,523,292 217,437,621 216.280.929
457,700
24,340,891 4.897.876 19,
8.488,852,527 4,914,819,123 1,697.263,482 1.691.285.512 - 185,
1.989.958.106 1.264.844.608 428.295.833 296,817,665 -
3.487.076.918 1.746.722.802 1.510.540,995 229.813,120 -
379,280,752 132,054,510 15.690,692 94,799.993 136.735.557
5,856,315,776 3,143,621,920 1.954,527,520 621.430.778 136,735,557
2,632,536,751 1,771.197,202 (257.264,039) 1.069,854,733 (136.735.557) 185,
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41. OPERATING SEGMENTS

Entity-Wide Disclosures: Analysis of Gross Income on Product Basis

As at 31st March 2024

Interest Income
Commission Income
Other Income

As at 31st March 2023

Interest Income
Commission Income
Other Income

Finance Lease Gold Loan Ligans and Other Total
Advances
LKR LKR LKR LKR LKR
574,634,047 1,183.588.,966 154,281,660 241,113,370 2,153,618.043
10,249,062 10,249,062
9,293,591 74,157,350 5,194,301 56,528,033 145,173.275
583,927,638 1,257,746.316 159,475,961 307,890,465 2,309,040,380
2 Loans and
Finance Lease Gold Loan Other Total
Advances
LKR LKR LKR LKR LKR
641,168,494 807,982,594 239,486,405 116,662,455 1,805,299,948
13,067,675 13,067,675
- 88,672,799 - 17,238,933 105,911,732
641,168,494 896,655,393 239,486,405 146,969,063 1,924,279,355

42. CHANGES IN LIABILITIES ARISING FROM FINANCING ACTIVITIES

Sri Lanka Accounting Standards LKAS 7 (Statement of Cash Flows), requires an entity to disclose information that
enables users of Financial Statements to evaluate changes in liabilities arising from financing activities, including both
changes arising from cash flows and non-cash changes. Accordingly, changes in liabilities arising from financing activities
for the year ended 31 March 2024 are disclosed below.

Balance as at 01 April 2023

Net cash flows from financing activities
Non cash changes
Foreign exchange movements
Amortization of loan origination costs
Accrual for interest expense

Balance as at 31 March 2024

Securitization

Borrowing
LKR

480,833,580
119,166,420

(9,896,736)

26,416,026

Bank Borrowing

LKR

1,437.647.334
861,565.880

25,642,832

616,519,290

2,324,856,046




